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1 UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

() 2 NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

3

ATOMIC SAFETY AND LICENSING BOARD PANEL
4

5 CONFERENCE WITH COUNSEL

6

7 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -X
:

8 In the Matter of: :
:

9 UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY :
:

10 PROJECT MANAGEMENT CORPORATION : Docket No. 50-537
:

11 TENNESSEE VALLEY AUTHORITY :
:

12 (Clinch River Breeder Reactor Plant) :
:

13 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -X

l' Nuclear Regulatory Commission
[~' Fifth Floor Hearing Room

15 4350 East-West Highway
Bethesda, Maryland

Friday, May 13, 1983

la The conference with counsel in the

19 above-entitled matter was convened, pursuant to notice

20 at 10:00 a.m.

21 BEFORE:

22 MARSHALL E. MILLER, Chairman
Administrative Judge

GUSTAVE A. LINENBERGER
24 Administrative Judge

25
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3

GEORGE L. EDGAR, ESQ.
4 Morgan, Lewis & Brockius

1800 M Street, N. W.
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Representing Project Management Corporation
6

7 EDWARD J. VIGLUCCI, ESQ.
Tennessee Valley Authority

8 400 Commerce Avenue
Knoxville, Tennessee, 37902
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10 PETER J. GROSS
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12 Post Office Box U
Oak Ridge, Tennessee, 37830

14 WILLIAM LUCK, ESQ.
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BARBARA A. FINAMORE, ESQ.
18 Natural Resources Defense Council, Inc.
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THOMAS B. COCHRAN, Ph.D.
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| Suite 600
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24 washington, D. C. 20006
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3 SHERWIN E. TURK, ESQ.
Senior Litigation Attorney
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1 PROCEEDINGS

2 JUDGE MILLER: Good morning, ladies and

3 gentlemen.

4 We will open the conference with counsel and

5 parties which was the subject of a notice that we

6 transmitted early to counsel on May 9, 1983, and there

7 was written notice that went out to all of the parties.

8 It is the Board's desire at this time to have

9 an updating of various matters that have come up since

10 last we were in touch with you, as well as to rule upon

11 any matters that require ruling upon at this time.

12 First of all, let us have, if you will,

13 please, the introduction of counsel and their associates.

. 14 Mr. Edgar.
t
'

15 MR. EDGAR: My name is George Edgar. I am

16 counsel for Project Management Corporation. Seated to my

17 far left is Edward Vigluicci, an attorney for TVA. To my

18 immediate left is Mr. Peter Gross, Assistant Director,

19 Public Safety Division, Clinch river Breeder Reactor

20 Project Office. To my immediate right is William Luck,

21 Attorney, Department of Energy.

I 22 JUDGE MILLER: And for this conference anyway

23 who is lead counsel?

24 MR. EDGAR: I will be speaking.

25 JUDGE MILLER: Thank you.

TAYLOE ASSOCIATES
1625 I Street, N.W. - Suite 1004

Washington, D.C. 20006
(202) 293-3950

._ -_ . _____ _. _ _ . ___ . . _ .
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1 All right, who is next?

2 Intervenors.

3 MS. FINAMORE: My name is Barbara Finamore. I

4 am with the National Resources Defense Council. We are

5 representing intenvenors, Natural Resources Defense

6 Council and the Sierra Club. On my right is Dr. Thomas

7 Cochran, Staff Senior Scientist with the Natural

8 Resources Defense Council.

9 MR. TURK: Good morning, Chairman Miller and Judge

10 Linenberger. My name is Sherwin Turk. I am with the

11 Office of Executive Legal Director, NRC staff. With me at

12 my left is the Project Manager for the Clinch River

13 Project, Mr. Richard Stark.

14 JUDGE MILLER: Anyone else?-~

15 (No response.)',

,

|
'

16 JUDGE MILLER: Very well. Do we have the

17 correct page number in this proceeding? We have followed

18 the practice of having consecutive number of pages,

19 regardless of the purpose for which we assemble or

20 convene, and I think the current page number starts with

21 7106.

22 While we are on the subject of the

23 transcripts, let the Board note that we have received
|

! 24 what has been nominated Applicant's Transcript

25 Corrections, dated February 2, 1983, consisting of six

,

|

TAYLOE ASSOCIATES
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|

1 numbered pages of proposed corrections to the transcript
,

2 submitted by Mr. Edgar.

3 Are there any objections to these proposed

4 transcript corrections or any additions thereto?
1

5 MS. FINAMORE: No.

6 MR. TURK: None for the staff.

7 JUDGE MILLER: Hearing none, the Applicant's

8 Transcript Corrections as thus described are hereby

9 approved by the Board and will be incorporated in the

10 transcript of this proceeding.

11 (The document was handed to the reporter by

12 Judge Miller.)

13 (The document entitled Applicants' Transcript

, . 14 Corrections follows:)
|

15

16

17

18

19

20
|
| 21

22

23

24

|
25

!
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

In the Matter of )
)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY )
)

PROJECT MANAGEMENT CORPORATION ) Docket No. 50-537
)

TENNESSEE VALLEY AUTHORITY )
)

(Clinch River Breeder Reactor )
Plant) )

)

APPLICANTS' TRANSCRIPT CORRECTIONS

The United States Department of Energy and Project

a nagement Corporation, for themselves and on behalf of the
,

Tennessee Valley Authority (the Applicants), hereby submit

these transcript corrections for November 16-19,1982, which'

were inadvertently omitted from Applicants' list of transcript

corrections filed on January 24, 1983. These corrections

consist of errors in transcription or typing. Applicants

request that they be incorporated in the record of these

proceedings.

CORRECTIONS

PAGE LINE NOW READS SHOULD READ
,

3229 25 Which would men Which would mean

! 3261 6 then then I

3273 8 for no sickness for sickness

3286 19 card that card. That

3303 17 HAMMA0N HAMMOND

3304 4 It is Q It is|
I
'

3304 6 incorporated. incorporated?

| 3304 7 In the A In the

._ - _ _ _ _ - . . _ . . . - _ . _ _ _ __ __ _ ____ _ _ __
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PAGE LINE NOW READS SHOULD READ

3304 17 clafiry clarify

3305 1 whether the whether they

3308 25 nuke nuclear

3313 3 uncertainly uncertainty

3324 14 critizue critique

3324 21 BRP DRP

3331 6 --Government --General
Accounting Accounting

3331 14 senses sensors

3333 18 contraband personnel contraband, personnel
19 for the monitors, portal monitors,

3334 11 tested testing

3334 22 insulation installation

3335 21 FFPF FFTF

3339 13 mterial material

3362 1 your near
~

3367 10 been tested operating been tested and
operating

3377 4 non-experimental hot-experimental

3378 9 death theft:

3378 18 ATF HEF

3378 24 ATF HEF

3379 11 ATF HEF

3387 12 quanitities quantities

| 3404 7 Hamon Hammond

3410 3 sombody? somebody?

!

!
|

I
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PAGE LINE NOW READS SHOULD READ

3439 20 PRBR CRBR
.

3440 25 are is

34/1 2 safety SAF linet

3442 10 pens pins

3444 2 contacts context

3444 12 sometning something

3447 10 of material, a higher of material, there
level of plutonium is a higher level

of protection

3453 7 procedures are procedures and
going--and

3454- 12 providing that providing
assurance assurance

() 3460 13 war-gamining war-gaming

3996 23 man-rem that is man-rem value

3996 25 to...as a to reduce
,

3997 2 population are population by
- reduced by -

4017 21 approaches of approaches; of
,

4022 17 Cutahey Cuddihy

4022 17 Becker Boecker
|
!

! 4033 11 to zero point two 0.2
1

4039 22 there such elements such elements

4039 24 environmental work environmental, work ,

4022 17 Cutahey, Dr. Bruce Cuddihy, Dr. Bruce
Becker Boecker

4038 17 along alone

( 4039 16 incidents incidence

- _ -_ . ._ . - -. - ..
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PAGE LINE NOW READS SHOULD READ

4042 14, 17, 19 Marte11e Martell

4044 3 Marte11e Martell

4055 5 inheritive inherited-

4158 18 Bassford Basford
I 4174 8 mine mined

4178 23 soldiers cylinders

4182 5 limited person limited reason

4183 1 and--actual and not an actual

4183 2 think ___ know, think you know.

4183 20 They were There was

4209 8 programs, intentions Program's intentions
'

() 4210 9 RD R and D

4214 3 As I stated As stated

4217 16 impact dominated impact was
dominated

,

4223 9 Dr. Yarbro Mr. Yarbro
*

4225 7 is Carbon is that Carbon

4231 9 reprcduction production

4233 25 fabrication of fabrication in

4234 25 in that raport in that report

4238 1 radioblankets radial blankets
i

4242 1 operational occupational
|

4245 5 40 CRF 40 CFR

| 4245 10 to for

4252 5 Sherwodd SherwoodO

-_ _ _ _ _ _ . _ . . _ _ _ _ . ._ -._ _. _ . - - .-. - _ _ . - - _
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PAGE LINE NOW READS SHOULD READ

4260 9 assessment was assessment that was

4262 15 days per time days per ton

4312 1 wherever where

4314 16 fuels material Fuels and Materials
examination facility Examination Facility

,

4633 24 The "X" in this line is used to label an ,

unknown quantity and should not be con-
fused with the transcriber's use of _he
same "X" to stand for " chi", the capital

; Greek letter, in the atmospheric dis-
persion parameter "X/Q".

4634 1 calculated the calculated for the

4634 24 in the equations and the equations ,

4635 21 those. I think, those--I think,
,

4638 13 density in absolute density and absolute()
4640 13-14 in comparison. It in comparson--it

says says

4641 16 FMFBR LMFBR

4642 4 schedule schedule which

4650 4 site sites

4650 5 dispersion population. dispersion and
population.

|

! 4650 7 dispersion in popula- dispersion and
tion population.

4652 13 is it it is

4654 1 evaulating evaluating'

4654 9 right. Co right. Go

4655 1 of up'

4657 8 substnatially substantially

(
4658 12 differently different'

-
.
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U^
PAGE LINE NOW READS SHOULD READ

4659 14 give gives

4669 18 bet be

4672 22 site sites

4672 23 values in the values and the

4676 13-14 standing. To standing to
:

4676 15 standing, one standing. One

4680 4 and in a

4680 22 and in a

4681 12 and in a

4693 25 environmental environmental,
engineering engineering

4696 5 consequences enhance consequences,
and hence

4698 12 in and

4705 10 for four

4717 9 fuel field
i

4721 6 Dr. Koutant Dr. Coutant

4722 24 would found would be found

4725 3 Peach and Artemis Page and Artemus

4725 15 diffferent different

Respectfully submitted,

bh . ' //f rf
George L. Edgar
Attorney for Project
Management Corporation

DATED: February 2, 1983

.
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1 JUDGE MILLER: The first matter the Board

n/(_ 2 wishes to take up is to identify the contentions which

3 are the subject of this proceeding for a construction

4 permit. I think that such contentions were identified by

5 the Board in a prior order which established the issues.

6 Are those the contentions that were set forth

7 in the order following conference with parties dated

8 April 14, 1982? Does anyone recall?

9 MR. EDGAR: Your Honor, there was an April

10 14th, 1982 order and an appendix thereto. Subsequently,

11 the Board's order of March 10th, 1983, further identified

12 the issues for the CP proceedings.
.

13 JUDGE MILLER: The order dated March 107

7-w 14 MR. EDGAR: Yes, sir.

''
15 JUDGE MILLER: Yes, I see it now. It is

16 entitled Order Opening Discovery entered March 10, 1983,

17 which did identify the admitted contentions which

18 remained in controversy and were therefore identified as

19 framing the issues for the construction permit

20 proceeding. Is that correct?

21 MS. FINAMORE: There is one omission to that

22 list.

23 JUDGE MILLER: One omission. All right, which

24 one is that?

25 MS. FINAMORE: Is the remainder of contention
[
1

!

TAYLOE ASSOCIATES
' 1625 I Street, N.W. - Suite 1004

Washington, D.C. 20006
(202) 293-3950
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1 2, namely, contentions 2A through D.

2 JUDGE MILLER: All right, contentions 2A

3 through D then should have been contained in numbered

4 paragraph one of our order of March 10, 1982. Is this

5 right?

6 MR. EDGAR: We don't quite see it that way. We

7 think that 2A through D are disposed of. However, there

8 may be some of the same, or there may be a residuum of

9 issues subsumed within contention 3C which involve the

10 core melt through scenario and containment response.

11 MS. FINAMORE: The reason that contention 2A

12 through D are still in the proceeding are, first, that

13 they were admitted for the LWA proceeding for only a

rs 14 limited purpose, as the Board stated in its order of

15 April 22nd, 1982.'

16 Since we were limited in our ability to

17 litigate that issue at the LWA proceeding, we intend to

18 go into those matters again in the full design detail

19 approach that we originally envisioned. The regulations

20 do provide that site suitability is an issue for the

21 construction permit proceedings.

| 22 Secondly, contention 2D relates to the
l

23 adequacy of the containment design, and the partial

24 initial decision issued by the Board in February of '82
25 specifically notes that the staff will address the

|

("')T'

s. TAYLOE ASSOCIATES
1625 I Street, N.W. - Suite 1004

Washington, D.C. 20006
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1 adequacy of the containment design in the SER. Therefore,
%/ 2 that issue was specifically not resolved in the partial

3 initial decision and remains open for litigation at the
4 CP stage.

5 JUDGE MILLER: What is the staff's position?

6 MR. TURK: Your Honor, this is the first time

7 that I have understood the intervenors to believe that
8 contentions 2A through D are still part of the
9 proceeding.

10 JUDGE MILLER: 2A through D, dog, I think.

11 MR. EDGAR: D, dog.

12 MR. TURK: Yes, through D, dog. There was a

13 motion filed by the applicants on March 7th, 1983. It was

14 entitled Applicants' Motion Concerning Schedule For

15 Construction Permit Hearing, and therein the applicants

16 set forth a statement as to what the issues are that
17 remain. They include contentions 2F, G and H, but r.o

18 other part of contention 2.

19 In response to that motion, on March 24th,

20 1983, the intervenors filed a paper in which they did not
21 contest, indeed, they did not address that portion of
22 the applicants' motion concerning what the issues are
23 that remain for litigation.

24 It was my belief, based upon their response to
25 applicants ' motion that they were in agreement as to the

\

N,) TAYLOE ASSOCIATES
1625 I Street, N.W. - Suite 1004

Washington, D.C. 20006
(202) 293-3950
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1 issues which need to be litigated.

.(~h
(_,/ 2 In addition, the Licensing Board's order which

3 established a schedule for the hearings ---

4 JUDGE MILLER: What is the date of that?

5
,

That is the March -- forgive me oneMR. TURK:

6 moment, and I will get the order.

7 JUDGE MILLER: March 29?

8 MR. EDGAR: March 10 and serviced March lith.

9 The order itself was dated March 10th.

MR. TURK: It is the March 10th order. The10

11 Licensing Board set out the issues which included 2F, G

12 and H, but not the other parts of contention 2, and I had

13 never heard until now that the intervencrs believe that

,s 14 the issues were anything other than just 2F, G and H.

[d\

15 We have been conducting discovery as a result

16 f the Board's March 10th, 1983 order limited solely to .

17 portions F, G and H of contention 2. We have not filed

18 any discovery on the other portions of contention 2

19 because we believe internvenors to be in accord that only

20 F, G and H need to be litigated at this time.

To hear intervenors now assert that 2A through21

22 D are part of the contention leads me to believe that we

23 have been unjustly deprived of discovery if those

24 portions of the contention really should be in.

25 I think there is an estopple at this time for

_/ TAYLOE ASSOCIATES
! 1625 I Street, N.W. - Suite 1004

Washington, D.C. 20006
(202) 293-3950
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1 intervenors to claim that 2A through D are still part of

OQ 2 the proceeding.

3 Further, it is our belief that the Licensing

4 Board's prior decision of March 28, 1983 amply disposed

5 of those portions of the contention and that no further

6 litigation on them is necessary.

7 To the extent that site suitability issues

8 were resived in the February 28, 1983 decision, we don't

9 believe there is any need to go through it a second time.
'

10 JUDGE MILLER: You said the Board's order of

11 March 28th. Which order is that?

12 MR. TURK: I am sorry. I meant to say February

13 28, 1983, the partial initial decision.

14 MS. FINAMORE: Your Honor, the fact remains

15 that this contention 2 is the major portion of our case.

16 JUDGE MILLER: Well, how come we just hear that

17 now we haven't been hearing of it then since February? If

18 that is true, they are urging estopple before we go into

19 that aspect of the legal matter. Just as a practical

20 matter, I would like for you to explain to the Board why

21 you have been silent all this time.

22 You went on to the entry of the Board's order

23 opening discovery and what the Board stated and believed

24 with the agreement of the parties as to the admitted

25 contentions which were to be resolved, and now all the

b
U TAYLOE ASSOCIATES

1625 I Street, N.W. - Suite 1004
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1 sudden we hear from you. We are a little puzzled.

2 MS. FINAMORE: Your Honon, we had a prehearing

3 conference back in January when we discussed the issues

4 that were going to be raised at the CP stage, and it was

5 amply explained at that time that contention 2 was going

6 to be discussed.

7 It is my understanding ---

8 JUDGE MILLER: Wait a minute now. What are you

citing? I want to get your citations. You said there was9

10 a Prehearing conference. Was there an order then entered

11 f llowing the prehearing conference? Cite me your

documentation.12

MS. FINAMORE: I believe it was January 5th,13

14 1982 at the close of of closing arguments.~~

\"/ JUDGE MILLER: January 5, wait a minute. Not so15

16 fast now. I am trying to get this. I want to hear you. I

17 don't want to have you rattling. What is the date again?

18 MS. FINAMORE: I believe it was January 5th,

1983 at the close of closing arguments.19

20 JUDGE MILLER: Now you said '82 and you said

21 '83. Now let's settle down. Was it this year or was it

22 last year?

23 MS. FINAMORE: '83.

24 JUDGE MILLER: Okay. Now where was the

25 conference held, what was the nature of it and

TAYLOE ASSOCIATES
1625 I Street, N.W. - Suite 1004

Washington, D.C. 20006
(202) 293-3950
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i particularly you can save time if you can cite the,

(Ds_,/ 2 Preconfernce order or the order following or whatever it

3 was.

4 MS. FINAMORE! Well, as Your Honor may recall,

t 5 we held closing'argurtents on the LWA proceeding on

6 Janaury 4th and 5th.

JUDGE MILLER: Correct, I remember that.'

7
,

MS..FINAMORE: There was no prehearingg

conference order issued.9

10 JUDGE MILLER: Well, that wasn't a prehearing

11 conference either, was it?

12 MS. FINAMORE: It was a conference with counsel

13 at the close of those closing arguments ce the LWA 1.

14 JUDGE MILLER: At the close of the arguments?
f-

2 MS. FINAMORE: Yes. We had discussed a schedule15

16 at that time.

17 JUDGE MILLER: All right, give me the

18 transcript citation then. Those matters were all

19 reported. In fact, the arguments were used by the Board

20 in part in having a preliminary view of the proposed

21 findings of fact at least that were then urged and

22 subsequently submitted in writing by the parties. So I am

23 sure there is a transcript reference, and instead of

24 relying on memory, let just find out what the facts are.

25 MS. FINAMORE: I am afraid I don't have the

O
V TAYLOS ASSOCIATES

1625 I Street, N.W. - Suite 1004
Washington, D.C. 20006

(202) 293-3950
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1 actual page citation to the transcript'with me.

2 JUDGE MILLER: Don't you think you ought to? If

3 we are going to have matters that are of significance in

4 determining issues in what you have told us for ten years

, 5 is a very important case, and we agree, we certainly
i

6 there is something a little slipshod about this matter of
.

7 at this late stage of discovery, which has been closed, I
i
'

guess, and we will find out in a moment, of getting readyg

9 f r a trial on the merits on the remaining issues that

10 are controverted in the construction permit proceeding in

11 July.

12 We find it a little strange that we don't know

13 whether or not contentions 2A through D are or are not
;

14 issues and whether or not estopple or something similar

15 should be invoked according to the views taken and

16 expressed here by the staff and the applicant.

17 Now that is a significant matter. It is a-

18 professional matter. We don't want any slipshod practice

: 19 now by any of the parties' counsel. So, therefore, let's

20 take this by the numbers. You ero a lawyer now. We are'

21 holding an adjudicatory herJin. now. Start at the

22 beginning and let the t3 gy;syy g reflect your reasoning.
I

23 MS. FINAMORE: As the Board may recall, on

24 April 14, 1982, it issued an order admitting a number of

25 contentions of the intervenors for purposes of the LWA 1

:

' s TAYLOE ASSOCIATES
1625 I Street, N.W. - Suite 1004,

'

Washington, D.C. 20006
(202) 293--3950
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1 and the CP proceeding.
_s

(s,/%
2 JUDGE MILLER: What page are you referring to

3 of that order, page 2 perhaps, or 3? Three I would think.

4 MS. FINAMORE: Well, Appendix 1 lists all the

5 admitted contentions of intervenors.

6 JUDGE MILLER: Well, that is the appendix. Now

7 you, first of all, referred me to the order. Now there is

8 a difference between an order and an appendix, first of

811-9

10 MS. FINAMORE: On page 3 of the order

11 e ntention 2 was admitted and renumbered contention 1,

12 and then contention 3 concerning the adequacy of the

13 analyses of CDAs by applicants and staff was admitted and

14 renumbered admitted contention 2.
bs)
\/ 15 JUDGE MILLER: Wait a minute. Was that

16 contention 37 I am trying to follow you. I am looking on

17 Page 3.

18 MS. FINAMORE: Yes.

19 JUDGE MILLER: All right, now which contention

20 there was renumbered as contention 2 that we are now

21 talking about?

22 MS. FINAMORE: Contention 3.

23 JUDGE MILLER: Okay. And was that otherwise

24 referred to then in the order? If so, give us the page as

25 we g along so we can see what we are talking about. I
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1 see we also had agreements regarding discovery. I don't

f)s know whether that pertains to it or not.(, 2

3 MS. FINAMORE: It is not really relevent to

4 this hearing, but discovery on those contentions was

5 discussed.

6 JUDGE MILLER: All right, just so far now as it

7 pertains upon this question of 2A through D, which was

8 the previous contention 3 as discussed on page 3

9 concernino the adequacy of analyses of CDAs by applicants

10 and staff was admitted. It was renumbered admitted

11 contention 2.

12 The Board overruled objections by applicants

13 and staff nolding that the language added by the

14 intervenors to the previously admitted in 1976 contention
g

N~) nly added to the clarity of the contention and it did15

nt expand its scope. Now that is from the transcript of16

17 page 135.

18 This I guess is the genesis now of the present

19 contention 2A through D, right?

20 MS. FINAMORE: That is correct, and that

21 contention is set out in Appendix 1 of that April 14th,

22 1982 order.

23 JUDGE MILLER: Is there anything significant

24 there now?

25 MS. FINAMORE: Yes.

3(V TAYLOS ASSOCIATES
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1 JUDGE MILLER: Okay, refer to it.

2 MS. FINAMORE: .It generally refers to the

3 analyses of CDAs and their consequences by applicants and

4 claims that they are inadequate for purposes of licensing

5 the CRBR, performing the needed cost-benefit anlaysis or

6 demonstrating what is in effect site suitability under 10

7 CFR Part 100.

8 JUDGE MILLER: What it says was demonstrating<

9 what, that the radiological source term would result in

10 potential hazards not exceeded by those from any accident

j 11 considered credible as required by 10 CFR 100.1(a)

12 Footnote 1. Is that what you are referring to?

13 MS. FINAMORE: That is correct.

14 JUDGE MILLER: Okay, go ahead.

15 MS. FINAMORE: Parts A through D raise the

16 issues of, first of all, the radiological source term

17 analysis used in CRBRP site suitability. Intervenors

18 claim it should be derived through mechanistic analysis

19 and that neither applicants nor staff have based the

20 radiological source term on such an analysis.
,

21 Subsection B claims that the radiological

i 22 s urce term analysis should be based on the assumption
|

23 that CDAs of credible accidents within the DBA envelope

24 should place an upper bound on the explosive potential of

25 a CDA and should then derive a conservative estimate of

I

|
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1 the fission product release from such an accident.

2 We claim that neither applicants nor staff

3 have performed such an analysis.

4 Subsection C claims that the radiological

5 source term analysis has not accurately considered either

6 release of fission products and core materials or the

7 environmental conditions in the reactor containment

8 building created by the release of substantial quantities

9 of sodium.

10 Neither applicants por staff have established

11 the maximum credible sodium release following the CDA or

12 included tne environmental conditions caused by such a

13 sodium release as part of the radiological source term

14 pathway analysis,

d Subsection D claims that neither applicants3 .

nor staff have demonstrated that the design of the16

containment is adequate to reduce the calculated17
'

18 ff-site doses to an acceptable level.

19 These were admitted as contentions and they

| 20 will remain as admitted contentions. The Board has not

decided that these should be deferred to the operating| 21

22 license stage. There has been no argument by applicants

23 and staff that these contentions should be deferred.

24 In fact, on April 22nd, 1982, the Board

25 decided that the bulk of those w ntentions would be
;

i
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1 litigated at the construction permit stage and that they
O(j 2 would only be litigated for a limited purpose at the LWA

3 1 stage.

4 All parties were obviously on notice that

5 since these contentions were not going to be resolved

6 completely at the LWA 1 stage, that they would be

7 resolved completely at the construction permit stage.

8 JUDGE MILLER: What are you referring to on the

9 latter quotation from the Board, the so-called limitation

10 that you say the Board placed upon the matters to be

11 considered at the LWA 1 or 2 stages.

12 MS. FINAMORE: One moment.

13 (Brief pause.)

14 MS. FINAMORE: I am afraid I don't have that

15 particular prehearing conference order in front of me.

16 JUDGE MILLER: What was the date of it?

17 MS. FINAMORE: April 22nd, 1982.

18 JUDGE MILLER: April 22nd, 1982.

19 MS. FINAMORE: That order was the result of a

20 conference with parties on April 20th, 1982, in which the

21 parties discussed for an entire day what the scope of

22 contentions 1, 2 and 3 should be at the LWA 1 stage and

23 to what extent those contentions should remain as an

24 issue in the construction permit proceeding.

25 In that April 22nd, 1982 order the Board
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1 specifically deferred contentions 1B and 3A to the

2 e nstruction permit proceedings and limited the scope of

! contentions lA, 2A through D and 2F through H as well as3

4 3B through D for litigation at the LWA 1 hearing.

5 All parties were on notice at that time and

6 have continued to remain on notice that the bulk of those

7 contentions would be available for litigation and indeed

8 had to be resolved at the construction permit stage.

That is consistent with the regulations for9

i 10 construction permit hearings which note that at the LWA

11 stage site suitability is an issue for a reactor of the

12 general size and type as the proposed facility, whereas

13 ~ at the construction permit stage site suitability must be

14 determined for the reactor in particular.

15 Therefore, this is an issue, a specific

16 finding that the Board must make. The Board has not

17 resolved that issue at the LWA 1 stage, and specifically

18 noted that the issue of containment design and the issue

! 19 f whether core disruptive accidents should be within the

20 design basis would be litigated heavily at the

21 construction permit stage. These are the issues that we

22 raised in contention 2. t

23 In addition, the SER contains new information

24 concerning the doses from a core disruptive accident. If

25 in fact the Board decides at the construction permit
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1 stage that core disruptive accidents are credible, then

b. jly 2 they must be included within the source term of 10 CFR

3 Part 100 and the source term analysis must be redone.

4 That is the issue raised by contention 2.

5 I just don't understand how applicants and

6 staff can claim ignorance of this issue when it was made

7 very clear over one year ago.

g MR. EDGAR: I would like to respond to that.

9 The question of intervenors' knowledge that the scope of

10 2 for the CP was going to be contention 2F G and H and

11 not A through D is basically summarized in our April

12 27th, 1983 motion to dismiss contentions 2F, G and H.

13 Chronologically what happened here was that on

14 March 2nd we sent the intervenors a proposed statement of

b)\- 15 schedule and scope which identifed 2F, G and H as the

16 issues for trial.

17 On March 7th we filed a motion for a schedule
.

18 with the Board that stated the same thing.

19 On March 10th the Board issued its order

20 identifying the issues as to 1F, G and H.

21 On March 24th the intervenors responded and

22 did not take exception to either our motion or the

23 Board's order.

24 On April 27th we filed our motion to dismiss

25 which summarized this complete history.
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1 Now there is a practical perspective on this

O(_/ that I would like to bring to the Board's attention. If2

3 you look at 2F, G and H what they really involve is the

4 questions of code, that is computer code verification,

5 validation and documentation, and the so-called

6 energetics issue.

If ne examines the Board's partial initial7

8 decision at pages 20 through 22, if one examines the

9 Board's findings, that is findings of fact, numbered 17,

10 26 and 27, and then examines finding 30, there is a

11 consistent logical framework established for

12 consideration of these contentions.

13 Ms. Finamore said it. If the Board decides

g 14 that a CDA must be a design basis accident, then it would

("'l
15 be necessary to redo the site suitability source term

16 calculations.

17 Contention lA goes to the question of whether

18 a CDA is a DBA, and on that issue the Board's partial

initial decision indicated that that was a matter for19

20 litigation at the CP hearings. That is no secret.

21 Everybody understands that and the Board made itself

22 quite plain in that regard.

23 But if you look at the logic of 2A, B, D and

24 D, what you see is a contention that says that the site

25 suitability source terms selected by the staff and

C\
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1 analyzed by the applicants and staff should be predicated
p^%
( ,) on a CDA being a DBA.2

3 The evidence at the site suitability stage of

4 the proceedings was predicated on a CDA not being a DBA

5 and the Board made the findings that I had cited to that

6 regard.

7 In finding 30 though the Board left open the

g question of examination of containment response to the

9 CDA scenario, and that is in fact contention 3C.

10 As a practical matter, what you have got here

11 is a situation where we are going to litigate whether a

12 CDA should be a design basis accident, and if the

13 applicants are successful in sustaining their burden or

14 Proof, 2A, B, C and D become totally academic.Ok-) 15 Furthermore, there is that portion, if they

16 claim that there is a containment response issue involved

17 here, and the closest argument they could make there
_

18 w uld be to stretch 2D, if that is the claim, then that

19 can be handled and accommodated within the evidence on

20 3C, which is your core melt phenomena and involves the

21 assessment of containment response to the core melt

22 through scenario.

23 S we think that the solution lies in two

24 respects here.

25 First, that as a historical matter intervenors
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i
.

1 have been on notice and have waited until today to raise

2 the matter after being explicitly advised of the

i 3 situation.

4 Secondly, as a practical matter, the issues

5 that intervenors seek to litigate, that is whether a CDA
,

6 should be a DBA, that is in, and the second one,

7 containment response to a CDA, is also in under 3C.

8 So that the Board has in the partial initial

9 decision disposed of those elements of 2A, B, C and D as

10 are predicated upon the site suitability source term

11 recommended by the staff.

We therefore submit that there is nothing to12

13 litigate here, that 2A, B, D and D are not in, and that

14 intervenors, for whatever reasons, do not have a basis

15 for asserting those contentions at this time.

16 MR. TURK: May I make a brief response to

intervenors' comments.17

18 The staff is not claiming ignorance in any

19 way, as is asserted by intervenors, as to the scope of

20 matters to be litigated.

21 As far back as December 27, 1982, a letter was

22 sent by Mr. Edgar's law firm to the intervenors

23 addressing scheduling matters and the scope of

24 contentions, and in that letter, as far back as December,

25 intervenors are put on notice of the view that only 2F, G
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1 and H remain to be litigated.

2 That is probably the genesis for all the

3 subsequent views by applicant and by the staff and has

4 never been disputed by intervenors as to what the scope

5 of contentions need to be.

6 Being somewhat new to this proceeding,

7 personally it is difficult for me to see how any of the

8 matters raised in 2A through D are not going to be

9 litigated anyway.

10 It is the staff's intention to present

11 testimony on whether the CDA should be considered to be

12 part of the DBA.

13 JUDGE MILLER: Under what contention or what

14 issue?(w
( 15 MR. TURK: Under in particular contention 3C.

16 JUDGE MILLER: 3C. Well, how does 3C

17 specifically cover that? Let's take them one at a time.

18 MR. TURK: Contention 3C asserts that accidents

19 associated with core melt through following loss of core

20 geometry and sodium concrete interactions have not been

21 adequate analyzed.

22 As part of that contention, when intervenors

23 speak of a core melt through following loss of core

| 24 geometry, what they must be referring to is a core

25 disruptive accident, i.e, the CDA.
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1 Therefore, it is fully our intention to

ID
( ,/ 2 litigate and the present testimony on the staff's bases

3 for not including the CDA within the design basis

4 accident envelope.

5 I would urge that perhaps there is nothing

6 more here than a semantic question as to whether 2A

7 through D need to be litigated on their own or whether

8 the issues raised really are covered by 3C.

We don't intend to go through the whole9

10 radiological source term analysis a second time. We have

11 done that already, but we will litigate the probability

12 of CDAs occurring as well as the consequences of a CDA.

13 If intervenors believe that anything other

14 than those issues are included in 2A through D, I would

n\_/ 15 call upon them at this time to identify what further

16 matters they feel need to be litigated which are not

17 included in contentions 1 and 3 but had been asserted in

18 contention 2.

19 MS. FINAMORE: If I may respond. The staff just

20 referred to a letter in December '82 from the applicants.

That is what we discussed with the Board and the other21

22 parties in January when we discussed preliminary matters

23 concerning the schedule and the scope of the CP hearing.

24 At that point we pointed out that contention 2 was still

25 litigable,

q_j TAYLOE ASSOCIATES
1625 I Sweet, N.W. - Suite 1004

Washington, D.C. 20006
(202) 293-3950

_- _ _ - - - _ _ - _



7131

1 Now I also note that at that point the partial

initial decision had not been issued and that there was2

3 no basis for saying that the issues had been totally

4 resolved in the partial initial decision.

5 Now that the partial initial decision is out,

it is clear that the Board has not resolved the issue of6

7 what effect making CDAs within the design basis would

8 have on the site suitability source term. That is the

9 issue raised in contention 2 that is not raised in

10 contentions 1 or 3.

11 Now the staff said that they intend to

12 litigate the general areas of those issues. If that is

13 the case, then they cannot be heard now to complain that

14 they need additional discovery if in fact the areas

15 covered in contention 2 are areas that they intended to

16 litigate anyway.

17 The question here is what legal conclusions

18 must the Board make. Contention 2 raises a legal

19 conclusion and the issue of 10 CFR Part 100, site

20 suitability, that is not raised anywhere in contentions 1

21 or contentions 3.

22 I also wish to point out that it has been

23 intervenors' position throughout the proceedings to date

24 that even if core disruptive accidents are not considered

25 within the design basis, that 10 CFR 100 nevertheless

.O
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1 requires a greater source term than that proposed by

\~/ 2 staff and applicants because of the 10 CFR Part 100.2'

3 that requires additional conservatisms in the event of a

4 first-of-a-kind reactor and a more conservative analysis

5 of the accident vis-a-vis the venting.

6 This particular issue remains and is separate

from that in contentions 1 and contentions 3.7

MR. EDGAR: I will just respond briefly. We8

9 have had two references to the January 5th discussion. We

10 have yet to see a citation. I do not have at hand the

11 means to say that there is no such citation, but neither

12 does the Board have it. I do not recall such a

13 discussion.

14 Secondly, Ms. Finamore said it, what they are
ID
'N / after. They want to talk about the effect of a CDA on the15

15 site suitability source term.
;

17 The fact is that the Board has made findings,

18 and I gave the citations, on the adequacy of the source

19 term, assuming that a CDA is not a design basis accident.

23 The issue that invervenors are apparently
.

3 seeking to raise is one that will be rendered wholly

'.2 academic by the results of litigation. If a CDA is in

23 fact a design basis accident, then it would seem that

24 applicants lose on contention lA which alleges that a CDA

25 should be a DBA and that recalculation would be required.

(h
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1 But there is little point in litigating the

(n,)
2 second issue, which is the effects on the source term if

3 the CDA is a DBA, when you have got the first issue and

4 need not reach the second.

5 Ms. Finamore also said something every

6 interesting, which I had not focused on before, and that

7 is that contention 2, and this is a qaote, " raises an

8 issue of a legal conclusion." If that is true, then we

9 will add to our motion to dismiss contention 2F, G and H

10 the additional ground that there can't be a disputed

11 issue of material fact and the Board need not take

12 evidence on contentions that raise legal conclusions.

13 The Board can consider, if the Board will

14 focus on two contentions here and examine that againstn

15 the PID, or excuse me, I will apologise for the acronyms,'-

16 CDAs, DBAs and PIDs, but if the Board examines the

17 structure of the initial decision and then looks at

18 contention lA, you will see that lA puts four square in

19 issue the question of whether a CDA should be a design

20 basis accident.

21 3C goes on to talk about the melt through

22 scenario, which is inherently intertwined with the

23 containment response to the core disruptive accident. It

24 is consistent with the Board's findings in the initial

25 decision to consider those two contentions and the issues

,
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o

1 presented by those two contentions, but there is

(_) 2 absolutely no reason for the Board to consider 2A through'

3 D.

4 MS. FINAMORE: I have one more brief point.

5 When the Board issued its April 22nd, 1982 order it

6 limited contentions 2A through D as well as others by

7 refusing to allow discovery on the question of design

8 details.

9 At that time the Board said that it would

10 just resolve those matters in a general way at the LWA 1

11 stage and at the CP stage the parties would have an

12 Opportunity to litigate all those issues fully based upon

13 full design detail and information contained in the PSAR

14 and the SER.-

\" Now for the applicants to come back now and15

16 say that those issues have been fully resolved and cannot

17 be gone into at this stage on the basis of the full

18 inf rmation which we were not allowed to discuss at the

19 earlier proceeding is totally incomprehensible to me. The

20 applicants cannot have it both ways.

21 JUDGE MILLER: If you contend that despite the

| 22 arguments that have been made that this an area which the
|

23 Board excluded from discovery by the intervenors at the

24 LWA 1 or 2 phase and reserved for in both discovery and

25 litigation on the issues as to the specific design that
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1 would be the subject of inquiry in the construction

() Permit phase of the evidentary hearing, which is what we2

3 are now approaching, then if would seem to the Board that

4 it would be incumbent upon you to delineate rather

5 clearly and rather specifically what additional matters

6 there are, factual presumably, but cognizable at any

7 rate, within the controverted issues that are amenable to

8 evidentary hearing now at the CP stage which were not

9 either available or adequately covered at the prior LWA

10 phases.

11 That was the basis upon which we said that we

12 were limiting discovery on the evidence to those things

13 which were relevant, significant, material, or use what

14 adjectives you wish, on the LWA as a preliminary matter.

O)(_ 15 We also said we would permit those natters to1

16 be gone into insofar as appropriate. Now we didn't mean

17 that we were going to redo, although we would probably

18 Permit you to incorporate by reference or at any rate

19 somehow or other get into the record if you wished

20 evidentary or other matters which were gone into in the

21 transcript of the LWA 1 phase into this evidentary CP

22 Phase. We will protect your rights in that regard, but to

23 take the time and resources of the parties and the Board

24 to go into both discovery and litigation of matters that

| 25 are not necessarily excluded from consideration would
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1 seem to impose some burden upon the intervenors to point

7 out with specificity at this time, and that we then are

3 asking you to do.

4 MS. FINAMORE: One moment, please.

5 (Brief pause.)

6 JUDGE MILLER: Yes, you may proceed.

7 MS. FINAMORE: The specific new factual

inf rmation that is now available at a time which we wich8

9 to litigate contention 2 is as follows.

10 First of all, the staff has come up with new

11 calculations of the doses from a core disruptive accident

12 in the SER, and those

13 JUDGE MILLER: Where is that contained.

14 MS. FINAMORE: Appendix A to the SER.

15 JUDGE MILLER: Appendix A?

16 MS. FINAMORE: Yes.

17 JUDGE MILLER: And what is the nature of this

18 new information that you are talking about? In other

19 w rds, give us a feel for it.

20 MS. FINAMORE: The staff has performed entirely

21 new calculations using " realistic assumptions" of what

22 the doses would be from a core disruptive accident at the

23 Clinch River Breeder Reactor. The basis for those

24 calculations is contained in several fairly voluminous,

25 background documents.
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1 In addition, we were informed yesterday that

) there will be yet another supplement to the SER which is2

3 not going to come out until sometime next week, and that

4 this SER supplement is going to contain another set of

5 dose calculations from core disruptive accidents.

6 Now that is the new information. How does it

7 relate to Contention 2? First of all, we discussed in our

8 LWA 1 testimony based upon the limited information that

we had available to us at that time that the site9

10 suitability source term analysis of the staff was

11 inadequate.

12 One of the issues that we raised at that point

13 was that it was inadequate because it did not consider

14 application of the vent purge system and what effect use

'''' 15 of that system would have upon the dose consequences at
.

16 the LPZ.

17 To make that case you have to prove that if

18 you did use applicant of the vent purge system, the

19 resulting doses would in fact be higher than the doses
,

(
| 20 guideline values.

21 The calculations that we would use to make

22 those arguments have now been changed because the staff

23 has come up with new " realistic calcualtions" of what the

24 doses would be from a CDA in which the vent purge system

25 is used.
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1 We want to use that information and other

) information to determine or to claim that the actual site2

3 suitability source term analysis was inadequate, and that

is what is brought out in our contentions 2A through D.4

5 JUDGE MILLER: Let us hear from the staff on

6 that.

7 MR. TORK: May we have one moment.

8 (Brief pause.)

9 JUDGE MILLER: While they are taking a moment

to look it up, explain to the Board why it would not be10

11 covered by or cognizable within the matters set forth in

12 your contention 3C. The Board is of the preliminary view

that it would be included within and cognizable within 3C13

14 and there is no sense in us wasting time if everyone

13 agrees with that or if anyone fails to delineateA-

16 satisfactorily to the contrary.

17 Mr. Edgar.

ig MR. EDGAR: I would point out to the Board, to

19 reflect on what Judge Miller just said, that if you look

20 at Appendix A of the SER to which the intervenors just

21 made reference for the dose calculations, you don't see

22 in Appendix A a set of site suitability source term type
t
'

23 calculations. What you see is a set of calculations

24 involving dose consequences from the core melt through

f 25 scenario which is in fact contention 3C.

, .
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1 S that the evidence that the intervenors are

2 citing is co-extensive with the Board's view of

3 contention 3C, that they are in fact the same thing. We

4 are talking about the same thing.

5 JUDGE MILLER: Is the staff now prepared to

6 address this question?

7 MR. TURK: As a preliminary matter, let me

8 indicate to the Board that intervenors stated they were

9 informed just yesterday as to new dose calculations

10 having ceen performed by the staff,

11 What they are referring to when they say that

12 is a March 28th, 1983 memorandum issued subsequent to the

13 issuance of the SER which contains the staff's CDA dose

14 calculations. Now that is a memorandum that was presented

15 to the ACRS and was considered at the April 14th, 1983

16 ACRS meeting.

17 Intervenors had an opportunity to be at that

18 meeting and could have learned even before our response

19 to discovery this week as to what the staff's CDA dose

20 calculations were, but those dose calculations were not

21 available when the SER was issued back on March lith.

22 JUDGE MILLER: When were they available?

23 MR. TURK: March 28th, 1983.

; 24 JUDGE MILLER: For the first time?

25 MR. TURK: That is correct.
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1 Now, secondly, they refer to the issuance of a
/~h
'(_) 2 new SER supplement which is hoped to be out next week.

3 All that that SER supplement will addr6ss with respect to

4 CDA doses is that the March 28th memorandum contains the

5 dose calculations and here they are for the CDA. It won't

6 add anything beyond that which is contained in the March

7 28th, 1983 memorandum.

8 Incidentally, a copy of that memorandum was

9 served on the Board on May lith, 1983. It styled an

10 enclosure to the staff's May 10th, 1983 discovery

11 response.

12 Now as to whether or not those doses are

!

13 litigable at this stage, tney certainly are. We intend as

14 part of our presentation in 3C, contention 3C and
fg
4 /

15 conceivably, depending upon how we parse ours/

16 understanding of the contentions, and conceivably with

17 respect to other subparts of contentions 1 and 3, what

18 the CDA dose consequences are expected to be, and a

19 intervenors will have a very good shot at those dose

20 calculations regardless of whether contention 2 is

21 tecnnically in or out of the proceeding.

! 22 As to whether or not the SSST should have

23 included the CDA dose calculations, which are now

24 available, it is our view that they do not. They relate

25 to the CDA and not to the Part 100 site suitability

Ot
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1 source term analysis.

2 JUDGE LINENBERGER: A question, Mr. Turk, and

3 we will get onto this as a broader subject later of

4 timing of documents, but you are correct in saying that

5 the Board just this month got a copy of that March 28th

6 memorandum which has been provided to the ACRS.

7 I am curious. In the first place, was a copy

8 of that served on intervenors, do you know?

9 MR. TURK: Two copies. We served one by mail

10 and we hand delivered a second copy yesterday to be sure

11 they had it as quickly as possible.

12 JUDGE MILLER: What were the dates of those

13 services?

r 14 MR. TURK: Service of the staff's response to

15 which the enclosure should have been included, but was

16 inadvertently omitted, was May 10th. The enclosure was

17 submitted the next day after the previous evening I

18 realized I had neglected to include it with our discovery

19 response.

20 JUDGE LINENBERGER: Okay, that confirms my

21 notes also, but the question I was leading up to is that

it would appear to me, and pernaps you can set me22

23 straight here, that if that information which was

24 available for a March 28th memorandum had been timely

25 distributed to others than ACRS, some of the discussion

O
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1 this morning might have been a little more

O
(,/ 2 straightforward. Can you explain how it comes about that

3 this was available at end of March but we don't see it

4 until May?

5 MR. TURK: Yes. The memorandum was presented in

6 ur response to a specific discovery request by the

intervenors. The discovery request was in the7,

intervenors' second set of interrogatories in late April8

9 f this year and within the time permitted by the rules

10 we put out our response on May 10 which referenced that

11 memorandum and then by oversight the memorandum was then

12 forwarded the next day.

13 JUDGE MILLER: I don't think that is quite the

14 point.

N.) JUDGE LINENBERGER: That is not really the15

16 Point, no. The point is that if these data had been

17 compiled and were available back in March, it would seem

18 reasonable to the Board that the Board see it shortly

19 thereafter and all other parties to the proceeding see it

|
20 shortly thereafter rather than it awaiting until it was'

21 explicitly requested in the discovery interrogatory.

22 JUDGE MILLER: Yes, this gets us into a

23 broader subject, Mr. Turk, that we would like to take up

24 right now. We regard all the parties, and especially the

25 staff, as being under an affirmative duty to disclose

!
!
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1 promptly, and not a month later, but promptly all matters
/~
( ,T) 2 which could have some significance.

3 Now we think that in this regard the staff was

4 derelict and we putting it squarely to you, and we hope

5 that in the future this will not occur.

6 when these matters come about we don't want

7 the staff to sit around, contemplate their navel and look

g up the rules and see the last date. We want them to come

9 to the Board with copies to the parties promptly, which

10 in this context raeans immediately.

11 I think we have indicated that before. I

12 realize you come a little late to this proceeding, Mr.

13 Turk, so our remarks are not meant to be personal, but

14 they certainly are meant to be institutional.
/"3
r 4

\s / We feel that the staff has in this and other15

16 instances failed to communicate promptly potentially

17 significant matters, we have alluded to some prior

18 decisions of the Appeal Board and this Board in that

19 regard. So we are putting you on, and not just staff, but

20 we are putting all of you on notice now that we want this

21 information to come and to come promptly and to come

22 affirmatively.

23 MR. TURK: Judge Miller, I appreciate your

24 comments. Let me point out that the first time I became

25 aware of the memorandum personally was the day before the

,) TAYLOE ASSO CIATES
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N

1 discovery responses went out on May 9th.
N

x-) 2 JUDGE MILLER: Well, as I say, we are not

3 making it personal to you, Mr. Turk, but we'are calling

4 it to your attention, and not only of staff, but of all

5 Parties and counsel, that the Board expects to be

6 promptly and affirmatively notified. If there is any

7 doubt, send the copies and notify the parties.

If it is something that is not significant, it8

9 is all rignt. We can file it. But on the other hand, we
i

10 want to be on top of the situation, especially when we

11 have expedi,ted these proceedings. We have expedited the"'

12 proceedings. We have put you all on notice that we are on

13 an expedited schedule and that carries with it the

14 concurrent, concomitant responsibility affirmatively to

15 take the action and not to wait until the very last day.

16 Anticipate it even if you must, but it will be

17 helpful I thinx and will save us a lot of time as we move

18 into these evidentiary hearings.

19 MR. TURK: Your Honor, may I point out that

20 this was an internal NRC memorandum. It was not-

21 communication between parties.

22 JUDGE MILLER: Well, that may be, but
|

23 nonetheless it goes into a subject matter this Board is

24 interested in and we don't want any fooling around here

25 with technicalities and that kind of thing. We try to get

p)
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1 to the heart and the substance of matters. We do
A

(_) 2 throughout this and other preceedings and that is our

3 rule.

4 So technicalities, you know, like in the Navy

5 they say no excuses in the, Navy. So don't give us the

6 excuses later. Give us the information tirst, early, and

7 then we will all get along". We will impose the same duty

g on other parties to the 'scaff, too. It is not aimed at

g the staff.

10 Okay, proceed.

11 MR. TURK: 'We will attempt to comply, Your

12 Honor.

13 MS. FINAMORE: I believe the Board had a *

14 question. I believe the Board had a standing question on~

\~ 15 how this contention differed from'3C.

16 JUDGE MILLER: Yes, or why it was not included

17 and cognizable within 3C. If it i s ,' then there is no

18 point in going further into an ambiguous at best

19 situation.
.

20 MS. FINAMORE: I believe 3C is fairly generally

21 written. It is only a sentence, whereas 2A through D

| 22 refer not just to the analysis of core melt through,
!

23 which is what is raised in contention 3C, but how that

24 analysis is plugged into the site suitability source term

25 analysis.
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I

1 It raises a separate issue under a separate

)
2 Portion of the regulations, and that is why it is not

3 covered by contention 3C. |

JUDGE MILLER: If we are talking about,4

5 contentions as pleadings, for example, some of which are

6 more generally pleaded than others, we are not going into

7 any narrow, sterile rule that the failure to include C
,

8 when you have given A, D and D is going to preclude you.

9 In other words, if there is a fair and

10 reasonable setting forth of the issue as an issue, as a

11 pleading in a contention, we would deem that to be

12 sufficient to enable intervenors to cross-examine examine

13 and put on their evidence and to impose whatever

14 obligation would otherwise be imposed upon the applicants'

15 and the staff of course makes its own judgment.

16 So in that respect now we don't need to waste

17 a lot of time if that is where we are headed. Now whether '

18 if something narrowly is within A and B, if it is fairly

19 c gnizable within 3C, that should do it, and we beginning

20 to think that it apparently is, but we are giving you one
4

21 final opportunity to show us any way in which it is not

22 and which you could conceivably be prejudiced.
,

23 MS. FINAMORE: Is it okay if Dr. Cochran

24 addresses this?

25 JUDGE MILLER: No, thank you. That is why 1

<

'

TAYLOE ASSOCIATES
1625 I Street, N.W. - Suite 1004

Washington, D.C. 20006
(202) 293-3950

- ,, - _

. - _ - - . __ .. - - . . -. - - -_. - . - _ _ _ . _ _ - _ _ _ - _ . - - -_



7147

asked who is lead counsel. We are going according to the1
7 _.
( ,) rules of evidence now and hereafter.2

3 MS. FINAMORE: Okay. One minute, please.

4 JUDGE MILLER: Yes.

5 (Brief pause.)

6 MS. FINAMORE: The arguments made in 2A through

7 D have a greater scope than those laid out in contention

8 3C. They have to do with the adequacy of the site

9 suitability source term and wnether or not the core

10 disruptive accident is in fact included within the design

11 basis.

12 The issues that we raise in A through D have

13 to do with how the staff performed the site suitability

f- s 14 source term analysis itself, what assumptions it used,
6

\ '\
15 whetner it used a mechanistic or non-mechanistic

16 analysis, whether it adequately considered the release of

17 fission products and environmental conditions in the

18 reactor containment building, how it treated the vent

19 Purge system and whether the containment design is
i

20 adequate to reduce the doses to an acceptable level.

21 Contention 3C does not discuss any of those

22 issues. The only thing that the parties have raised so

| 23 far is that some of the factual matter that we might use
!

24 to litigate those issues might overlap, out the

25 statements themselves and the concepts and issues of

l

i /m
( | )
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1 material fact that they represent are different.

2 We don't see why there is any reason to erase

3 a contention that has been on the books for all this

4 time.

5 JUDGE MILLER: Well, the reason is because you

6 are now for the first time alerting the parties and the

7 Board that you consider it to be necessary when such was

8 not considered by the Board in its order delineating

9 remaining issues. You said nothing about that. I am

10 talking about the Board's order which was predicated upon

11 what the parties said or in your case didn't say.

12 Now we don't expect you belatedly and at this

13 stage as we are concluding discovery and are heading

14 toward an evidentiary hearing to engage us in anfg
-) unnecessary argument about contentions that are or are15

16 not still in the picture.

17 It appears to the Board that the matters, the

18 issues, the factual and other issues that you are

19 entitled to raise either by cross-examination or in the

20 presentation of evidence, are included and includable

within 3C.21

22 Certainly this transcript is going to reflect

23 all the matters that you say you need to produce. So I

24 think at the trial if you are the subject of a motion to

25 exclude some testimony on the grounds of relevance, you

A
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1 can very readily, and have with you the transcript when

d you are relying on a transcript, counsel, it always2

3 helps. I think it will adequately protect you.

4 The Board is going to rule that the issues

5 that have been anticipated, delineated and described at

6 some length by the parties are cognizable within 3C, and

7 that the intervenors have at least failed to indicate a

a contrary view as to the non-litigability of the issues 2A

9 through D as a result of the written presentations

10 heretofore by the parties, their reliance thereon by the

11 Board and the Board's entry of an order setting forth the

12 issues.

13 If the order didn't set forth issues,

14 everybody jolly well had a burden to come forward

V
15 immediately and yell. We are not going to hear these

16 echos at a later date.

17 S y ur objections to that are going to be

18 overruled and we are going to go ahead with the

19 contentions as set forth in the order, including 3C, and

20 leaving out intentionally for the reasons cited, 2A

21 through D.

22 MR. TURK: Judge Miller, may I ask for a

23 clarification?

24 JUDGE MILLER: Yes.

25 MR. TURK: In Ms. Finamore's most recent

i

TAYLOE ASSOCIATES
1625 I Street, N.W. - Suite 1004

Washington, D.C. 20006
(202) 293-3950

, -- . - _ - - -. -. ..-- -- - - _- _



. -- . _. - _ ._ _ - - _ _ - .. ._

7150

1 comments she stated that she wanted to address how the

2 staff's SSST analysis was conducted, whether it was

''

3 mechanistic or non-mechanistic and what was included.

4 In our view that has all been litigated,

5 already. I am not sure that you intended to include those
,

6 matters within our ruling as to what ---

7 JUDGE MILLER: We didn't intend to rule on that

8 one way or the other and we haven't ruled on it now one

9 way or the other. The appropriateness of it is a separate

issue.10

11 MR. TURK: Is it the Board's view that those

12 matters should be litigated, that the SSST analysis

13 should be relitigated as part of contentions 1 and 3?

14 JUDGE MILLER: Let me state generally, and I

15 have asked my scientific colleague to reflect for a

16 moment upon this, what we intend to go into at this CP

17 evidentary hearing phase are those matters which are

18 necesary to have a full record for the purposes of the

19 Board in making an initial decision and appellate bodies.

20 Now to that end we have had certain evidence

21 and certain matters that were covered at the LWA 1. We

22 have held that we are not going to prejudice anyone

23 because of the somewhat limited nature of the issues

24 there or evidence at least to the specificity of design

25 and the like.
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1 On the other hand, thatdoesn'tmeInthatwe '

2 are just opening up the whole thing to regurgitate the

3 large masses of evidence which is unnecessary.

4 First of all, there would have to be a showing

5 as to the necessity, which is what you are now

6 approaching I think.

7 secondly, if there were a reason for it to be

8 relevant at an evidentiary hearing, the parties would

9 have the option at least to make the offer of proof or to

10 request that the transcript of the evidentary hearing at

11 the CP phase contain the following testimony, exhibits,

12 or whatever and set them forth. So that would then be in

13 the record to that extent.

(~) 14 Now if there is modification required or if

15 there is further cross-examination or whatever, this

16 w uld be proper, but at least the bulk of matters that

17 had already been the subject of testimony would be

introduced where relevant and where necessary in tihe CP18

19 Phase.

20 We would go from there then to protect the

21 rights of all parties to see that there was no prejudice

22 because this CP might nave some overlapping effect, but

23 that we would almost have to do on an ad hoc basis I

24 believe.

25 MR. TURK: Thank you.

!
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1 JUDGE LINENBERGER: Further to the point of the

(,,) mechanistic versus non-mechanistic analysis, the partial2

3 initial decision dealt with I think with most, if not all

4 aspects, of that question and indeed the parital initial

5 decision recognized that by not going the route of a

6 mechanistic analysis the door was opened to consider and

7 indeed there was a consideration of certain types of

g accidents more serious than design basis accidents

9 without stumbling over what was the mechanism for having

initiated them,
10

11 That to the Board added some, if you will,

12 strength to the overall analysis because nobody sat back

13 and said well, because we can't come up with a specific

7~. 14 initiator a specific accident sequence that leads to

15 this, we won't think. about it and we won't analyze it.''

16 Indeed, design basis accidents of considerable

17 severity were looked at, analyzed and their resultant

18 . consequences reviewed and discussed and dealt with by the
|
I

Board in the partial initial decision.'

19

20 So the Board finds at this point some

21 difficulty in understanding the desire by intervenors to

22 be bound by a mechanistic anlaysis here when certainly

23 things that -- well, I have said what I have said and I

24 will stop there.

25 JUDGE MILLER: All right. I think that is

, , ~

k
~
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1 probably all we need at this stage on that point unless

2 staff counsel, Mr. Turk, do you have any residual

3 question?

4 MR. TURK: No.

5 MS. FINAMORE: I have one point of

clarification.6

7 JUDGE MILLER: Ms. Finamore.

8 MS. FINAMORE: Is the result of this ruling

9 that we can in fact brief the issues raised by

10 contentions 2A through D at the CP hearing under

11 contention 3C?

12 JUDGE MILLER: Well, I don ' t know. I would have

13 to see the brief. I suppose you could do almost anything

14 and then say it is under 3C. You have asked me to rule in
~\

15 a vacuum. I don't know.

16 MS. FINAMORE: I thought the ruling was to the

17 effect that the matters raised in 2A through D were in

18 fact subsumed under 3C. '

19 JUDGE MILLER: You didn't listen carefully.

20 What I said was that those matters which are properly

21 cognizable and appropriate to be raised under 2A through

22 D may be raised under 3C. Now that doesn't make it a

23 blanket carte blanche for you to put in anything that you

24 wanted.
,

|

| 25 I asked you twice before and you I think
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1 Probably fairly covered what you intended on behalf of
(%(-) y ur client to raise as factual issues either by2

3 cross-examination or evidentary fashion.

4 I wanted to be sure the Board had in mind all

5 the things that occurred to you that you said you needed

6 Protection as a pleading matter of 2A through D. We were

7 unable to find in any of the matters you discussed

8 anything that could not be raised under 3C.

9 Now if you have got some more or if you think

10 of some later, this doesn't give you the Good

11 Housekeeping Seal of Approval and you are on your own.

12 All right, we will proceed. We spent

13 unfortunately an awful lot of time on 2A through D, and

14 our ruling is that 2A through D are not included as they-

\

15 were not included in the Board's order setting forth the'

16 issues.

17 Now this was purely introductory to my first

, 18 question of the parties and counsel, namely, what are the

19 issues which have been the subject of discovery and which

20 will be shortly the subject of prepared direct testimony

21 and cross-examination at an evidentary hearing.

22 MR. EDGAR: I can start I think the discussion.

23 I think the first thing to do is to identify the total

24 P Pulation of issues and then come back. There are four

25 Pending motions to dismiss contentions and I can identify
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1 those by dates, and I think that may help.
f \
( ) 2 The first thing that we have is by referring

,

3 to the Board's March 10th order, the first set of issues

4 is contentions 1, 2F, G and H, and 3.

5 JUDGE MILLER: The March 10th order?
'

6 MR. EDGAR: Yes, sir. Paragraph Arabic 1 of the

7 Board's March 10th, 1983 order identifies the first block

8 or set of issues as contentions 2F, G and H and 3, the

9 second set as contention 9 emergency planning, the third

10 set as contention 10 and the fourth set as contention
11 llA, alpha.

12 During the process of discovery intervenors

13 indicated their desire to withdraw certain contentions.
14 As a result of that, we have filed just for an accurate

15 record motions to dismission these contentions.
16 Intervenors have not responded in opposition and the

17 dates for response are past.

la Let me recount which four motions by date and

19 subject that I am speaking of.

20 The first is applicants' motion to dismiss

21 contention llA, alpha, dated April 21, 1983.

22 The next is applicants' motion to dismission

23 contention 9A, B, D, dog, and E, echo. That is dated

24 April 21, 1983.

25 The third is applicants' motion to dismission
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1 contention 10. That is dated April 27th, 1983.
n
( ,) 2 The final motion is applicants' motion to

3 dismission contentions 2F, G and H, and that is dated

4 April 27th, 1983.

5 If one subtracts out the subject matter of

6 those motions, the issues for resolution then consist of

7 contentions -- well, let me take them by sets. The first

8 set then would be contentions 1 and 3. The second set

9 would be contention 9C, that is Charlie, 9F, foxtrot, and

10 go, golf,

11 So that is what we have as the population at

12 this point.

13 JUDGE MILLER: Well, let's see, first of all,

14 if everyone agrees.

i
s/ 15 MS. FINAMORE: Applicants have again omitted a

16 portion of contention 9. That is the general statement at

17 the beginning of the contention which states "Neither

18 applicants nor staff have demonstrated that applicants'
,

19 plans for Coping with emergencies are adequate to meet

20 NRC requirements."

21 MR. EDGAR: We will be glad to go along with

22 that.

23 JUDGE MILLER: I assume that that would be 9C;

24 is that correct.
,

25 MR. EDGAR: I think, Your Honor, the point ie
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1 that the contention is structured so that there is a lead
hj 2 paragraph and then under that some lettered paragraphs,

3 and the question is whether the lead paragraph is out and
4 there aren't any pending motions on the lead paragraph.
5 It was the subparts to which the motions were addressed.

6 so you would end up with a contention that

7 read with the lead paragraph and then subparts 9C, 9F and
a then 9G.

9 JUDGE MILLER: That is what I understand to be

10 your statement of the present record.

11 Now is there any dispute about that?

12 (No response.)

13 JUDGE MILLER: Intervenors?

14 MS. FINAMORE: No. If the lead paragraph is,.

x 15 included, we agree that the remainder 9C, 9F, 9G and the

16 lead paragraph still remain for litigation.

17 JUDGE MILLER: Yes, the lead paragraph would

18 be. Unless it were specifically excluded, it would be

19 Considered to be included. It would be 9 "Neither
20 applicants nor staff" et cetera, and then the entire C, F

,

21 and G. It would be the issues as the Board understands
!

| 22 it.

23 MR. TURK: Judge Miller, the staff is in

24 agreement that those are the contentions that remain for

25 litigation, but we think it is very important that we
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1 bring to your attention something that transpired

('h
2( ) yesterday in the staff's deposition of Dr. Cochran.

3 JUDGE MILLER: Okay.

4 MR. TURK: During the deposition of Dr.

5 cochran, who, as you know, is the lead scientists for

6 intervenors, the staff inquired as to what are the

7 matters comprehended within the scope of contention 9 as

S left here with just these parts and the introductory

9 paragraph.

10 Dr. Cochran responded that there were five

11 matters that he considered to be within the scope of the

12 contention and no more. I would like to enumerate those

13 five matters now so that all the parties may express a

14 view as to whether they believe the contention includes

15 something more than these five matters.

16 JUDGE MILLER: Well, now you are getting into

17 matters of evidence, aren't you?

18 MR. TURK: No, these are ratters that would

19 frame the scope of issues to be litigated.

20
. JUDGE MILLER: That may be, but Dr. Cochran is
!

21 not a lawyer, and whatever he may have said in his
!

| 22 deposition is not necessarily totally binding either upon

23 counsel nor upon the Board.

24 MR. TURK: That is correct.

25 JUDGE MILLER: If you want to start dredging

|
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1 out deposition matters, those are evidentiary matters not

(n,) 2 before the Board. The Board would look at it simply as a

3 pleading matter.

4 MR. TURK: Well, I believe it is important that

5 if intervenors' counsel believes that Dr. Cochran
6 misstated the scope of the contentions, that they go on

7 record right now at this time ---

8 JUDGE MILLER: Well, just a minute. You are

9 trying your case at a time when we are having a

10 conference with counsel on pleading matters. We are not

11 interested now in whatever quarrels you may or may not
12 have with the counsel for NRDC. .

13 MR. TURK: There is no quarrel as far as I am

14 aware of.

O)(m, 15 JUDGE MILLER: Well, if there is no quarrel,

16 there is nothing before the Board.

17 MR. TURK: Well, Your Honor, I raise it at this

la time because we need to draft testimony, and in order to

19 draft testimony which properly addresses the scope of the

20 contention, we need to know what issues are at stake.
!

21 JUDGE MILLER: Well, you are talking now about

22 matters of law. You are talking now about a pleading that

|
23 is going to be determined by the Board, and the Board

l
l 24 isn't going to be bound by whatever anybody says at any
I
l 25 deposition, if we must be plain about it. We are giving
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1 to Dr. Cochran, or any other witness at a deposition, the

) 2 power to bind either the Board or inferentially partiesg

3 or counsel. He stated his views. If you agree, fine; if

4 you don't agree, fine. You go ahead and try your case,

5 but not here and not now.

6 MR. TURK: Judge Miller, my point is a little

7 bit different, and first let me point out I don't intend

8 to limit the scope of the Board's inquiry. That is not at

9 all what I am discussing now.

10 JUDGE MILLER: The Board is limiting it now.

11 MR. TURK: Well, I wish to point out, for

12 instance, that if the Board reads contention 9C they

13 would see that what the intervenors claim to want to

14 litigate are whether there has been a sufficient analysis

() 15 of the time required to evacuate various sectors of the

16 EPZ, for instance, during the ---

17 JUDGE MILLER: This may be. Now you are going

la contrary to what I have just ruled. We don't want to go

19 into the evidence.

20 MR. TURK: I am not raising evidentiary

21 matters, Your Honor.

22 JUDGE MILLER: Well, you certainly are.

23 MR. TURK: I am raising a legal matter as to

24 the scope of issues raised by contention.

25 JUDGE MILLER: If you want a legal matter you
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1 make a legal motion in proper form. Now I am not going to
(~'T

2(,j get off into wandering around and then in six months have

3 all of you arguing on what we ruled. We are not ruling in

' a vacuum. We are not ruling on legal matters. You may

5 file motions in an appropriate fashion. We are not going

6 to go into evidence now.

7 Pleadings in contentions or pleadings, we are

8 not going to go beyond that. Whatever you may have

9 gleaned from depositions or others may have gleaned from,

10 your witnesses, more power to you. Be happy with it. If

11 you need motions, file them, but don't try to get the

12 Board invovled at this stage. Now we have had enough
13 misquotations down the line.

14 We are going to go according to the rules of '

N-) 15 evidence and the rules of practice, and that is not one

16 of them.

17 MR. TURK: We will file a written motion.

18 JUDGE MILLER: Very well. Now what's next?

19 Have we concluded now the clarification of the

20 issues which are to guide the parties and the Board in

21 the evidentiary hearing scheduled for July in the

22 construction permit phase, namely, contention 1,

23 contention 3 and contention 9 and subparagraphs thereof,

24 C, F and G7

25 First now, is there any question that those
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1 are the sole remaining contentions?

(m) 2 Mr. Edgar?

3 MR. EDGAR: No questions.

4 JUDGE MILLER: Ms. Finamore?

5 MS. FINAMORE: No.

6 JUDGE MILLER: Mr. Turk.

7 MR. TURK: No.

8 JUDGE MILLER: Now we come to a question that

9 we would like to have answered very explicitly. We would

10 like to know why at this late stage of the matter with

11 all of the things that you people have been doing you

12 have been telling us about that we now for the first time

13 learn of the elimination of some very significant

14 contentions and the issues thereby, whereas the Board has

) 15 been proceeding as an adjudicatory body.

16 We have told you before and we told you today

17 we expect to be notified and notified promptly of any

la significant developments. This is certainly a significant

19
| development which affects scheduling and everything else.
i

j 20 We learn about it through the back door apparently in
|

21 response to some interrogatories made by the intervenors.

22 They rather causually say well, we are banning that so we

23 don't that so we don't have to answer.

24 Now this is wholly inappropriate. It is

25 unprofessional. We won't tolerate it, and we intend to

|
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1 admonish everybody who is responsible for this state of

2 affairs.

3 Now we will hear from you sequentially.

4 Mr. Edgar.

5 MR. EDGAR: Well, Your Honor, we heard about it

6 in discovery. We looked at it and said that that is

7 something that the Board know about. So we filed a motion

8 to make sure that the thing was on record and it was

9 brought to the Board's attention.

10 We wanted to have certainty plus I think there

11 is another point, and that is some of the matters, in my

12 judgment, the Board may have had an interest in. So we

13 thought it was important just as quickly as we got the

14 interrogatory response to move so that came to a head and

(_,) 15 got to the Board's attention.

16 That is our thinking on the matter, and that

17 is what we did.

18 JUDGE MILLER: Ms. Finamore.
19 MS. FINAMORE: I apologize to the Board for any

20 inconvenicace this may have caused. I was not in the

21 country at the time that these responses were filed. I

22 did not realize and I was not informed until I returned

23 that these contentions had been dropped by Mr. Cochran on

24 the basis that he did not have time to litigate all of

25 -those issues.
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1 When I returned the applicants' motions to ---

%
2j JUDGE MILLER: Pardon me. I will strike that.

3 We are not entertaining any apologies because anybody
4 didn't have time. They were withdrawn for whatever reason

5 and the Board was not notified. Now we take a serious

6 view of this.

7 Dr. Cochran is not a lawyer and we made that

a pretty clear in a number of rulings heretofore. You or

9 somebody is counsel of record. We consider that your

10 conduct in this regard was unprofessional. We consider

11 that it was not only a discourtesy. We consider it more

12 significant than that because the Board in scheduling

13 must be kept informed and there are plenty of cases from

l' the Appeal Board to put the affirmative duty to inform

15 the Board of any changes. I can cite them to you, you

16 have seen them before, and we are going to follow them.

17 You, and I say you if you are personally

la responsible, you or whatever counsel was responsible has

19 been guilty of dereliction of duty in that regard. We

20 therefore admonish you not to let it happen again in any

21 respect.

22 Staff.

23 MR. TURK: We have nothing to add, Judge

24 Miller.

25 JUDGE MILLER: All right.
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1 Our next matter then would appear to be the

() 2 intervenors motion to extent discovery and inferentially
3 to change the dates set up in our scheduling order.

4 (The Board confers.)
5 JUDGE MILLER: For the record, the Board will

6 grant the applicants' motions to dismiss contentions 2F,

7 G and H, 9A, B, D and E, 10 and llA. Those contentions

8 will be strixen.

9 he will now go on to the motion and the

10 responses thereto which pertain to the extensions of

11 time, discovery, scheduling, hearing and the like.

12 Ms. Finamore, it is your motion.

13 MS. FINAMORE: Thank you.

14 If I may begin in March of this year we

() 15 received the Board's partial initial decision on the 3rd

16 of March, and until that time were not aware of what

17 issues, if any, needed to be appealed.

la At that time we began immediately to prepare

17 an appeal to the Atomic Safety and Licensing Appeal

zu Board and a motion for a stay of the effectiveness of the

21 partial initial decision, and those motions occupied our

22 complete attention until the 18th of March.

23 JUDGE MILLER: I think I have indicated, and I

24 may save you some time, that we are not interested in

25 excuses. We are judging you by what you have done and not
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1 done and the other parties equally in this proceeding. I

/3
i ) 2 don't care how many appeals and I don't care how many

,

3 times Joe struck John somewhere else. We are holding you

4 strictly accountable for what happens here, all of you.

5 MS. FINAMORE: The SER of the staff was issued

6 on the lith of March and was received by the intervenors

7 approximately a week later, which is the last week in

8 March. At that point we immediately began to read the SER

9 and prepare interrogatories on those questions which we

10 filed as soon as possible in the first week in April.

11 At the point at which we received the SER and

12 prepared discovery responses on them, we were operating

13 under the March 10th, 1983 order of the Board which had

14 opened discovery, but which had not yet set a schedule-s

15 for either the close of discovery or for the commencement-

16 of the evidentiary hearings.

17 JUDGE MILLER: Discovery was opened by the

18 Board as of the date you mentioned. What was that, Ms.

19 Finamore?

20 MS. FINAMORE: March 10th, 1983.

21 JUDGE MILLER: March 10 on all admitted

22 contentions.

23 MS. FINAMORE: That is correct. As soon as we

24 received the SER we preceeded to commence discovery on

25 the issues contained within the SER. At that same time we

'
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1 determined what amount of information from the applicants
A
( ,) we would need to litigate the issues that were raised in2

3 the SER.
4 At that point we made a request to the

5 applicants for a production of documents mainly

6 concerning their reliability analyses which had been

7 outside the scope of discovery in the previous

a proceedings.

9 Now we have endeavored to make every effort to

10 comply with the Board's construction permit scheduling

11 order which was issued on the 29th of March 1983, even

12 though we had not had a chance to indicate all our

13 desires on what the appropriate schedules should be since

14 we did not believe it was necessary or prudent to set a

15 schedule until we knew the time when the SER and the SER
16 supplements and the ACRS review were coming out. So we

' 17 have not yet had a chance to be heard on the actual

18 schedule until this time.

19 JUDGE MILLER: Now wait a minute. Aren't you '

20 ignoring an intervenors' proposed schedule and scope for

21 hearings that was filed by you somewhat earlier?

22 MS. FINAMORE: Yes. As I mentioned before ---

23 JUDGE MILLER: What was the date of that? I am

24 looking at it now. Proposed schedule, mid to late

25 February 1983. So it must have been at least prior to

l
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1 that.

b) 2( MS. FINAMORE: If I may explain to the Board.

3 JUDGE MILLER: Well, first of all, what was the

4 date of that?

5 MS. FINAMORE: That was disscussed with the

6 Board the parties on January 5th, 1983.

7 JUDGE MILLER: January 5, okay. Under that now

a you were going to have hearings started on June 13 in Oak

9 Ridge.

10 MS. FINAMORE: Yes. That was based on

11 intervenors' understanding that the Board wished to begin

12 evidentiary proceedings on the CP in June of '83. That

13 was based on a discussion that the parties had had on

' 14 December 19th, 1982 at the close of the evidentiary
{Ns ,) 15 hearings in Oak Ridge.

16 JUDGE MILLER: Pardon me, wasn't that June date

17 we were discussing, wasn't that LWA 2?

18 MS. FINAMORE: Well, that was intervenors ---

19 JUDGE MILLER: Well, was it or wasn't it?

20 MS. FINAMORE: Yes.

21 JUDGE MILLER: That is my recollection. We

22 weren't talking about CP. We were talking about LWA 2

23 when we talked about June. Keep it in context.

24 MS. FINAMORE: That is correct, and that is why

25 we misunderstood the Board to believe the June date to
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1 refer to the CP hearings.
Ch

2( ,) JUDGE MILLER: Do you think the Board doesn't

3 know the difference between an LWA 2 evidentiary hearing
4 and a CP? I can assure you that the Board knows that

5 there is a very vast difference and had it clearly in

6 mind.
7 MS. FINAMORE: That is correct. Intervenors

8 were under the impression that the Board wished to

9 commence the CP hearings in June of '83.

10 JUDGE MILLER: I don't know what you based that

11 on. I think that was baseless. I was present at the same

12 hearings you are talking about, and while I don't have

13 the transcript either, I very clearly remember that the

14
_ June projected possible preliminary date referred to LWA

(,, 15 2 which itself added only certain additional issues to;

16 those we just completed the evidentiary hearing on the

17 LWA 1. That is why it was June.

Id Now that was not CP. In fact, in discussing CP

19 I also seem to recall we Were talking about the

20 possibility initially of it being early spring of the

21 following year which then was telescoped when the LWA 2

22 was abandoned, and that is why we issued the order. So

23 keep your discussion in context.

24 We did not indicate to you in any way that we

25 were looking toward the June evidentary hearing on CP
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1 matters.

2 MS. FINAMORE: I agree fully with the Board.

3 That was unclear to me at the December hearings. That was

4 the reason ---

5 JUDGE MILLER: My point is, counsel, it should

6 not have been unclear. Now you talk when you should

7 listen. I am trying to tell you now it should not have

a been unclear because the Board was very precise in

9 indicating what the June discussion was about, LWA 2, and

10 there was a very significant change when the LWA 2 matter

11 was withdrawn which is reflected in our order showing

12 that we accepted the withdrawal of that and of all

13 precedent matters such as discovery and the like of an

14 LWA 2 nature, which then put the whole matter into a

) 15 significantly new framework which we expected the parties
16 to address. They did or did not as they chose, and the

17 Board on March 29th issued its order which was effective

18 on scheduling after having opened discovery, as you

19 pointed out, earlier that month on all CP contentions

20 which had been admitted, which remained those minus now a

21 goodly number. Now that is the framework.

22 MS. FINAMORE: I understand that completely.

23 JUDGE MILLER: Okay, I am glad you understand

24 it now because apparently if you are basing something on
25 what you say the Board said in December, I don't want you

|
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1 to misquote the record.
%

s,) 2 MS. FINAMORE: All I am saying is that we do

3 not rely upon our January proposed schedule in any way
4 because it was based upon intervenors' misconception.
5 That is the only point that I wish to make.

6 JUDGE MILLER: Well then maybe you would

7 explain to me why in writing and typing at the bottom you
8 have June 13, 1983, hearings to commence on CP issues and

9 Continue until Completion.

10 MS. FINAMORE: That was our misunderstanding.

11 JUDGE MILLER: I think this is your document

12 and I don't care what you say you had a conception or

13 misconception of in December. I know what a CP hearing

la is, and I know if you then thought it was a CP hearing
i

' 15 following an LWA 2, all right, I will accept that in case

16 yu had that confusion in your mind. I didn't have it in

17 mine.

18 But, nonetheless, CP is CP. Now don't rewrite

19 history is all that I am saying. Don't rewrite history

20 because in January in writing your client, and I presume

21 you on behalf of your client was certainly contemplating

22 construction permit written testimony by June 1,

23 commencement of hearings June 13, and May 16 discovery

|
24 responses due on all matters and the close of discovery.

!

j 25 Now CP means construction permit.
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1 All right, now tell us when you shifted gears
s

i 2 and why.

3 MS. FINAMORE: We received the applicants'*

4 scheduling motion in March of 1983. At that point the

5 applicants indicated that they were not intending to

6 pursue an LWA 2, but wished to go on a schedule for a CP

7 hearing. At that point they cited our schedule which wcs

8 based upon a misconception as a basis for their beginning

9 CP hearings in June of '83.

10 When it became clear to us that the June '83

11 deadline that the Board had indicated in December was not
12 applicable to a CP hearing but an LWA 2 hearing, we saw

'
13 no necessity for us to try to comply with that June

14 deadling in setting a schedule because it would be

(~'
>

N ,/ 15 extremely difficult for us to meet that schedule.

16 JUDGE MILLER: That was your first mistake. Now

17 when was your next one?

18 MS. FINAMORE: Your Honor, we have endeavored

19 to comply with the Board's construction permit scheduling

20 order, as we have been throughout this expedited

21 proceeding. It has become apparent that we are unable to

22 meet and complete the analysis that we need of the

23 underlying documents from both the staff and applicants

24 in time to meet the schedule that the Board has set out.

25 JUDGE MILLER: Let me set the framing for you
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1 on that. Ever since we have been having these hearings
.

2 when they started back I think in 1975, 76, interrupted

3 for four years in '77 for reasons known to all of us,

4 reasons and the like, every time we have set a schedule

5 which involved evidentiary hearings and even
6 preliminarily matters of discovery, the intervenors in

7 this proceeding come in, raise their hands in holy horror
and say, my God, th'e sky is falling in, the Chicken8

9 Little syndrome, the Capitol is going to rock on its

10 heels, and we couldn't possibly have started the hearings
11 in fairness to you in due process last summer, but we

did, and we cou'1dn't possibly have done it in October or12

13 November, but we did, and we did get to tne conclusions

14 of the hearings and so.forth.

15 Now we are not going to be impeded by these

16 repeated requests at the last minute coming in by

17 intervenors to interrupt the schedules. The schedules are

la made and we expect you abide by them and live with them,
19 and we have given you full opportunity as we have gone
20 alone to present any problems that you had in a timely
21 fashion, and we are not going to entertain untimely
22 requests.

23 Now this may save you a lot of time and breath

24 because I will tell you quite frankly that going through

25 the agony of who struck John while you were abroad or

'
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1 wherever you were and whatever was done here and so forth
(m,) 2 is of no interest to us. We can sympathize as you as(,

3 human beings, but we are here as professional people. You,

4 are a lawyer, we have got a schedule and we intend to
,

5 adhere to it.

6 MS. FINAMORE: Your Honor, the scope of this

7 hearing in a broad sense is the adequacy of the safety

a evaluation report. As of this very moment the safety

9 evaluation report is not complete. In fact, next week

10 there is a supplement to be issued to the safety

11 evaluation report containing new material, the very

12 subject of which is covered by intervenor contentions,

13 namely, the doses from core disruptive accidents and this

14 discovery period is closed ---,

\~,/ 15 JUDGE MILLER: All right, let's set that aside

16 for the moment. Hold it now. I have been through this

17 with you before. When the board talks you cease talking,

18 please. We are not interrupting to be discourteous. We

19 are interrupting to try to save time and to focus your

20 attention on what we want to hear.

21 Now my question is setting aside this core

22 disruptive accident controversy that has been going on

23 interminably, setting that aside, in what other ways can

24 the intervenors logically and precisely contend that they

25 cannot comply with the schedule as lawyers?

TAYLDE ASSO CIA TESg

\ 162 5 I Street, N. W . - Suite 1004

W ashington, D.C. 20006

(202) 293-3950

-- -. - - _ .-



- . - -- _ . . . . . . ~

7175

1 MS, FINAMORE: There are several other basic

( ) 2 sets of material that we simply have not had the time to

3 conclude our review on, and they are as follows.

4 (Ms. Finamore confers with Dr. Cochran.)
5 JUDGE MILLER: Well, now you don't need to

6 confer with Dr. Cochran. I have said before he is not the

7 lawyer running this case. We have said before that you

8 are lead counsel. So start leading.

9 Now what are the subjects that you cannot go

10 to trial on as scheduled and give me the dates of the

11 documents that you are talking about, if they be based on

12 documents.

13 MS. FINAMORE: First of all, we are not

14 prepared to go to trial on contention 1B.

15 JUDGE MILLER: 1B. Why not?,

16 MS. FINAMORE: The adequacy of applicants'

17 reliability analyses. As I stated before, at the earliest
4

18 moment possible we requested applicants to provide us

19 with documents on their reliability analyses.

20 JUDGE MILLER: Did you receive any documents?,

21 MS. FINAMORE: No, Your Honor.
' 22 JUDGE MILLER: You received none. Just a

23 minute.

24 Staff, is this correct they received none?

25 MR. TURK: These are applicants' documents,
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1 Judge Miller.
m,

x/ 2 JUDGE MILLER: I am sorry. Then I am going to

3 absolve the staff on that.

4 MR. EDGAR: May I respond to that?

5 JUDGE MILLER: Mr. Edgar, you may go to bat on

6 that?

7 (Laughter.)

a MR. EDGAR: I will remain calm. I don't know

9 what the earliest possible moment is, but I can tell the

10 Board this, that on the 7th of April, which is roughly a

11 month after discovery is opened and which is eight days

12 after the Board's scheduling order, we received a request

13 for production of documents.

14 The rules of practice, which are incorporated

15 in the Board's February order setting the grounds rules

16 for the proceeding, permit 30 days for production of

17 documents. The Project processed the request and I am

18 advised that there are about six feet of documents that
19 have been developed, most of which are working

| 20 documents. This is the actual analysis as distinct from
|

21 just summary reports.

22 We responded on time with the rules of

23 practice. The intervenors contacted us on Tuesday and

24 said wnen and where should we inspect them. We said any

25 time at the Project Office since they are working
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1 documents.

() 2 We then received no response. Yesterday

3 afternoon the intervenors requested that we make them

4 available in Washington. We think that is item of

5 considerable expense to us and inconvenience. But after

6 conferring with Ms. Finamore this morning, she advises me

7 that they have a time and resource limitation problem, we

8 think on balance it makes sense to bring them up here,
9 and I have put the order in to get it done.

10 Now if you step back from that, what they are

11 saying is that they filed their request at the earliest

12 possible moment. Wrong. Dead wrong. In fact, they waited

13 a month after discovery was opened.

14
_ They cannot complain to us for our failure to

(m/ 15 meet our obligations. If it were a simple request which-

16 involved just some small summary documents, it might be
17 different. But this is a big one. We have held up our end

la and the intervenors cannot complain.

19 JUDGE LINENBERGER: I am just going to make an

20 observation here with respect to one of Ms. Finamore's

21 comments about future supplements to the SER, which is an

22 agenda item we want to talk about a little later.

23 I must say that even before the Board receivedi

24 a bound copy of the SER, it was just a matter of a day or

25 two after receiving the Xerox copy that the Board had
|

|

's,
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1 observed numerous areas in which the SER has staked out
I 2g_,/ the intent of the staff to issue supplements, and I think

3 it was pretty clear from the things that were said that

4 there were going to be more than one supplement based on

5 what was contained in the text of the SER itself.

6 So ti.e impending possiblity of supplements,

7 and so far I guess there has been one, was flagged in the

e original SER. So I am a little curious that you would

9 raise that as something that maybe is a surprise here. It

10 was a surprise to the Board to see how many things were

11 left for supplements, I agree with that, but that was

12 observable right off.

13 MS. FINAMORE: The point here is that the

14 information is still not avaialable to us, yet the

15 discovery period is closed. The staff has said that it is

16 going to include the information that it provided to us

17 in response to an interrogatory yesterday and that is

la mostly what the SER will contain.

19 Now that in that enclosure, which was the

20 response to our interrogatory, there is a listing of the

21 actual doses from an HCDA. Nowhere in that document is it
22 explained how those doses were arrived about other than a

23 list of model parameters on the previous page. However,

24 there is no explanation of why those parameters were
!
'

25 chosen as well and what the actual basis for beginning

|
,
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l
i

1 with those parameters and arriving at the dose
(~s
(,j 2 calculations were.

3 Now this is the information that is crucial to |

4 our case.

5 JUDGE MILLER: Now let's get that precisely.

6 What is the information that is crucial to your case that

7 you believe you should have a discovery on?

8 MS. FINAMORE: The underlying assumptions that

9 Caused the staff to choose these model parameters and

10 also the process by which the parameters chosen were

11 translated and resulted in the list of doses on the

12 following page.

13 JUDGE MILLER: What following page? What are

14 you referring to?

b'\- 15 MS. FINAMORE: I am referring to a document

16 dated March lith, 1983 entitled " Enclosure to NRC Staff

17 Response to Natural Resources Defense Council, Inc., and

18 the Sierra Club - Second Set of Construction Permit
19 Interrogatories and Request to Produce to Staff."

20 JUDGE LINENBERGER: Could you give that date

21 again?

22 MS. FINAMORE: May lith, 1983.

23 JUDGE MILLER: She did have March. You said

24 March lith.

25 JUDGE LINENBERGER: I thought you probably
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1 meant May.

O( ,, 2 JUDGE MILLER: I don't know, which is it?

3 MS. FINAMORE: It was two days ago, May llth.

4 JUDGE MILLER: We will correct the record

5 accordingly.

6 MS. FINAMORE: Now the other thing that is not

7 indicated in these enclosures, but which is crucial to

8 our case and to which we wish to have discovery is the

9 sensitivity analyses that surrounds each of these dose

10 calculations. That is a matter which is not indicated in

11 this response and from what counsel for staff has just

12 indicated will not be included in the SER supplement.

13 Even if we had known that this information was

14 coming, it is not going to be in the supplement and we

n 15\_/ need discovery time to determine what that information

16 is, and it has come after the close of discovery.

17 JUDGE MILLER: All right. Hold it a minute.

18 Now, staff, what can we do about that?

19 MR. TURK: First, I never expressed a position

20 with respect to applicants' documents, and let me state

21 for the record I have nothing to add on that.

22 With respect to comments made by intervenors
,

!
23 as to the SER and SER supplements, which either have been

24 or will be issued, I have several comments to make and

25 some of them result from my being troubled as to some

[V)
TAYLOE ASSO CIA T ES

16 2 5 I Stre et, N. W . - Suite 1004

W ashington, D.C. 20006

(202) 293-3950

;

<



7131

1 things I have just heard.

(O' 2j First of all, as the Licensing Board knows, it

3 is not unusual for the staff to be issuing supplements

4 all the way up to hearing and after hearing.

5 JUDGE MILLER: But it is not a practice that we

6 are pleased with and we certainly don't want to have to

7 get to sorting out what are necessary and what are not

8 necessary. We have been through that exercise with you

9 and others before, Mr. Turk, and we sure don ' t want to

10 invite it now. So don't cite that as a precedent that is

11 going to give you any comfort.

12 MR. TURK: I understand, Your Honor. What I

13 think is important is that by the time we go to hearing

14 on intervenors' contentions and by the time we have to

15 respond to Board questions, we will be ready with

16 material in the SER and supplements to back up the

17 positions we are taking.

18 JUDGE MILLER: All right. Now the question is

19 get Specific now. Counsel Contend that they need certain

20 information, discovery pertaining to sensitivity analyses

21 and other matters that she has described. If you

22 understand what she is talking about, and I assume that

23 you do unless you tell me otherwise, then tell me how can

24 we get that information in a timely manner.

25 MR. TURK: Well, I do not understand the term
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I sensitivity analysis.

(O 2
,/ JUDGE MILLER: All right, then let me find out.

3 I mean if you don't understand something then just say

4 so. Don't take anything for granted because we want this

5 record to be plain, clear and not in need of any

6 interpretation six months from now.

7 What do you mean by it?

8 MS. FINAMORE: In the LWA proceeding the staff

9 had come up with several dose calculations, including its

10 site suitability source term analysis and including its

11 estimate of doses related to certain core disruptive

12 accidents. The applicants came up with those doses as

13 well,

14 Now in response to discovery and consequently

) 15 in their testimony the staff and applicants, to my

16 recollection, came up with sensitivity analyses, which is

17 the range of confidence that they have in their

18 conclusions and what a possible range of results might

19 be given their assumptions.

20 JUDGE MILLER: Now whose sensitivity are you

21 talking about?

22 MS. FINAMORE: The sensitivity of the

23 calculations to various assumptions. For example, if they

24 assumed a more realistic filter efficiency than they did,

25 the doses would change by .1 percent, for example.

|
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1 JUDGE MILLER: Mr. Turk, do you understand her

() 2 explanation, or do your experts in case it is beyond yourv

3 expertise?

4 MR. TURK: Yes, I think it is clear to us now.

5 JUDGE MILLER: All right. Now go ahead and tell

6 me what your answer is.

7 MR. TURK: With respect to the issuance of the

8 SER supplement No. 2, as I indicated previously, that is

9 scheduled for next week and hopefully early in the week.

10 As I indicated, there is nothing in there on

11 doses beyond that which the intervenors already have as a

12 result of our response to the latest round of discovery.

13 JUDGE MILLER: Just a moment. What does it

14 cover? I understand it does not cover some of the matters
15 that counsel is interested in. Give us some idea of what,

16 it will cover.

17 MR. TURK: It covers only a few areas. With

18 respect to dose calculations it covers the matter which

19 was provided to the intervenors in response to

20 interrogatories on dose calculations.

21 It also addresses instrumentation on control

22 systems and quality assurance. The latter two were open
i

23 items in the SER which now are closed through SER
24 supplement'No. 2.

25 Now let me respond briefly to comments by

i TAYLOE ASSO CIA TESg

( 16 2 5 I S tr e e t, N. W . - S uite 100 4
W ashington, D.C. 20006

(202) 293-3950

- -_ - ._ - . . .-



7184

1 Judge Linenberger as to the number o'. open items in the

() 2 SER. I am informed by the technical staff that the SER

3 left open only six items. Four of those items were closed

* in the SER supplement No. 1 which was issued earlier this

5 month, and the last two will be closed out in the SER

6 supplement No. 2 which will go out next week.

7 JUDGE MILLER: You needn't go further at the

8 moment. We do want to go into those subjects which are or

9 Were left open, but We will do that all at once a little

10 farther in the hearing today. So we understand your

11 position and you have answered that adequately.
12 Now have you told us when you are going to get
13 the information that counsel claims is necessary for the
14 development of the intervenors' case? You told us whenA

' _-)\ 15 and how you are not going to. Now let's get down to the

16 affirmative of it. When are you going to and how?

17 MR. TURK: Well, the additional matters

le referred to by intervenors such as this " sensitivity

| 19 analysis," had not been requested previously. I am
i

| 20 advised by the technical staff that we would not oppose a
|

| 21 limited request for discovery at this time with respect
!

22 to that matter in the interest of fairness even though

23 the time has passed.

24 Also, let me point out ---

25 JUDGE MILLER: We are not interested now in
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1 passed time. We are going to use flexibility if necessary

() 2 to do justice to all, and that is you and your client and

3 it is intervenors and it is the applicants.

* Now what we are trying to do is fashion

5 something that is reasonable, which has certain specific

6 commitments by staff as to when and how they are going to

7 produce the information.

8 MR. TURK: Judge Miller, let me make two

9 Comments.

10 First, I want to point out that it is not true

11 that this information was only available in May. Some of

12 the information, the dose calculations themselves, that

13 is true. The intervenors did not have that before this

14 week. But the parameters used in calculating CDA doses

(-) 15 are set forth in the March 11 SER in Table A51.

16 That information was available to intervenors

17 all along with a few exceptions where the numbers have

la now changed, and that is clear as to where numbers have

19 changed by comparing the March 28th, which we served in

20 our responses to discovery with the SER Table A51. So

21 there is no mystery as to what has changed and what was

22 available previously.

23 The second point I want to make is that we

24 will respond to a further discovery request if permitted

25 by the Board ---
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1 JUDGE MILLER: Let's have the request now.
/%.
( ,) 2 Look, let's now play games. I don't like lawyers playing

3 games. I thought we made this clear. We want you to tell

4 us now what information you need. You can refine it in a

5 written interrogatory, but you surely are capable right

6 now of telling us what you need and the staff is capable

7 of telling us when and how they are going to supply it.

8 Let's not wind up and go around the corner. We

9 have got an expedited hearing, ladies and gentlemen, and

10 we want expedition by counsel.

11 Have you delineated what it is that you need

12 now sufficient to enable the staff to tell you when you

13 are going to get it, Ms. Finamore?

14 MS. FINAMORE: One moment, please.

N, 15 (Brief pause.)m

16 JUDGE MILLER: While counsel is conferring, let

17 me point out what is obvious I am sure to all of you. You

18 can have a lot of time spent on depositions, notice to

19 take it, objections, request for leave to subpoena duces

20 tecum. You can spend months doing that.

21
| You can also have a court or a Board say okay,

22 you want to take somebody's deposition and we will

23 schedule it next week. We will issue a subpoena that we

24 want that witness in. We are going to put him here on the

25
; witness stand in our presence and you ask the questions
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1 and we will rule as we go along, direct, cross and so
-~

(v) 2 forth. That you lawyers should understand the example.

3 That is precisely what we are doing now.

4 When you say that something is so blooming

5 important to you that this whole thing should come to a

6 screaching halt, you be prepared to tell us exactly what

7 it is and we will see (a) if it is reasonably necessary,

8 and if it is we will get it for you, but not six months

9 later.

10 Now I hope we are making clear to practicing

11 lawyers what it is that we are doing and how we are doing

12 it.

13 By the same token, staff counsel, Mr. Turk,

14 you might be conferring with your experts now to see what
,,

(,s/ 15 reasonably can be forthcoming at the soonest possible

16 date because as we have a multipying factor here, we

17 don't want to have this evidentary hearing delayed by a

is whole succession of things. So lean over backwards where

19 you reasonably can.

20 We don't ask you do that which is improper or

21 impossible, but nonetheless, there is a certain area

22 there we would request all counsel to lean over backwards

23 to be cooperative and get this discovery business over

24 with an get your evidence in and let's have a trial.

25 That is what is all about. You asked us to

f
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1 hold a trial and we are going to hold a trial. So let's
s
) 2 get through the preliminaries and be helpful to each

3 other because you are all in the same boat at some point

4 in time. You want something they have and vice versa. We

5 can do it the long tedious way or we can do it quickly

6 and by agreement.

7 That is why the Comanche Peak rules are

8 there, which some counsel don't seem to read very often,

9 which is to say when you make a motion show in that

10 motion when you conferred with other counsel and tried to

11 get it by agreement why you didn't get it.

12 Now in these motions I see, I see very little

13 of that. So I am having to repeat once again use the

14 Comanche Peak procedures. Do informally by conference

k 15 that which experienced counsel can often nine times out

16 of ten resolve without even involving the Board, let
.

17 along the delays. As we are on an expedited schedule, all

la of you should be cooperative.

19 Mr. Edgar.

20 MR. EDGAR: May I be excused for two minutes.

21 Mr. Luck will take over in my stead as lead counsel.

22
| JUDGE MILLER: We can take a five-minute recess

23 if you wish.

24 MR. EDGAR: No, not for me.

25
MR. TURK: Judge Miller, if I may respond very
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1
briefly.

; (::) JUDGE MrtLER: ves.,

MR. TURK: The staff, as you know, is4
.

interested in an expedited hearing as much as that is

consistent with fairness. That is the reason why we are

i ready at this point to supply additional discovery beyond
7.,

that which was permitted during the open discovery '
g

period.

JUDGE MILLER: Yes, we understand that, and we

understand also that the staff has as a matter of fact
11

taken a very liberal view of producing information which
| 12

,'

technically they might not have had to produce and at any '

134

.
'

rate could have required some showing. We understand and

we give the staff and the other parties credit for such
)

cooperation. That is true and the record will reflect it.
.

MR. TURK: Perhaps it might be appropriate to

take a few-minute recess.

JUDGE MILLER: All right, we will take a short
9

) recess.g
i
'

(Whereupon, a short recess was taken.)
21

JUDGE MILLER: Very well, you may resume, Ms.
,

Finamore.
23

MS. FINAMORE: We have just conferred with

counsel for the staff and we are ready at this point to
25

give you a general outline of what we are looking for.
.

!
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1

JUDGE MILLER: All right.
2,,

(,) '

MS. FINAMORE: But both the staff and the

intervenors would prefer to follow that up with a written
4

request for production of documents and interrogatories.
,

JUDGE MILLER: Is that agreeable with the

staff?
7

MR. TURK: Yes, with the understanding that the

written request well fall within the parameters of the

general outline which will now be given by Ms. Finamore.

Well, if they don't, you waste an awful lot of

time and this whole thing is subject to no trial delay,

right?

MR. TURK: That is definitely our position.

JUDGE MILLER: Very well, proceed,

s_/ MS. FINAMORE: Now we would like information on
16

both the underlying information on these model parameters

and on the Table 2A calculated doses for postulated

HCDAs.
19

We would like the staff to provide us with the
20

reasons why each of the assumptions in Table 1A were used

'

in the calculations.
22

We would like to know what other assumptionsi

| 23
i

are that were used, but not included in Table 1A,
24

including the dose conversion factors used by the staff,

the dosimetric models used by the staff, the gas sparging
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1

assumptions used by the staff ---

() MR. TURK: Could I ask that you slow down a
,

little. If Judge Miller doesn't mind, can I ask that the

list be reread, the last few items under what other
,

assumptions used ---

JUDGE MILLER: Yes. Where did you leave off

with your notes, Mr. Turk?

MR. TURK: Dose conversion factors.
9

JUDGE MILLER: Okay. What do you have after
10

that, Ms. Finaway?

MS. FINAMORE: Dosimetric models, gas sparging

assumptions ---
13

JUDGE MILLER: Gas? G-a-s?
14

MS. FINAMORE: Gas, g-a-s, sparging,

s-p-a-r-g-i-n-g.s

JUDGE MILLER: What is sparging?

MS. FINAMORE: That is, to my understanding,

the rate at which gas is released from the concrete in

the basemat as it interacts with sodium from a core melt.g

JUDGE MILLER: Do you agree, Mr. Edgar?g

MR. EDGAR: No.
22

JUDGE MILLER: I have heard the term used
23

somewhat differently.

' MR. EDGAR: The best analogy would be if you

have a pool of molten sodium, let's say, down in the
4
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1

reactor building. There will be a certain rate at which

() vapor forms and bubbles go up through the sodium and

carry material with it. I guess an Alkaseltzer would be a
4

rasonable analogy. Now I may get my head bitten off by
,

the technical people for that, but that is basically what

it is.
7

JUDGE MILLER: They may not know how to spell
8

relief either.
9

(Laughter.)

MR. EDGAR: There is a real possibility there.

JUDGE MILLER: All right, I think that helps

the Board understand, and I trust that counsel and his

experts can translate it.

MR. TURK: For the record, I have never heard
(~T 15

(s/ the term before. The experts with me have not heard the
16

term, and I would have to check to make sure that my

expert who will be answering an interrogatory

understands.
19

JUDGE MILLER: I am glad then we inquired.
20

Could you use some other term in the event

that the staff's experts doe't recognize it by that name,

or will you accept the explanation Mr. Edgar gave as

being within the framework?

MS. FINAMORE: We are using the term as the

applicants used it in their testimony in the LWA 1
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1

proceeding on Appendix J.
r- 2

( ,S) JUDGE MILLER: And how did they use it at that

time?
4

MS. FINAMORE: As Mr. Edgar just described it.
5

J

JUDGE MILLER: Okay. Then you accept his

explanation. -

MS. FINAMORE: Yes.
8

JUDGE MILLER: Very well.

Staff then I take it can use the same
10

definition if there be a problem.
11

MR. TURK: We will use that definition.
12

JUDGE MILLER: Very well. Go right ahead.

MS. FINAMORE: We would also like to know what
14

the staff assumed for the rate of sodium penetration in

the concrete.
16

: We would like to know regarding Table lA
' 17

whetrer the filter efficiency percentage refers to a
g

total of all filters and all activity or to the annulus
i

filtration or the vent purge filtration or some other

filter that is not the whole.
21

We would like the staff to provide any

intermediate outputs that it calculated in determining

the dose consequences in Table 2A.

MR. TURK: Could you repeat that last one,
i

please.

l

|
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1

'

JUDGE MILLER: Pardon me.

) Ms.-Reporter, I think we have asked to have

copies of the transcript delivered by Monday, have we
4

not?
5

(The reported nodded affirmatively.)

JUDGE MILLER: And you will be able to do that?
7

(The reporter nodded affirmatively.)
8

JUDGE MILLER: I think Monday morning is the

soonest that you need to read it, isn't it, so we can

proceed faster now?

MR. TURK: I want to be able to respond to the

discovery request before the Board to let you know where

I might have objections. Maybe we resolve the objections

now and then provide the discovery after the written_

( ) -

'

requecst comes in.s-
16

JUDGE MILLER: Look, if we are going to have

objections, let's have them one at a time. I thought we

were stating what they wanted was within the general

framework that she had discussed it with you, that the
. 20
| staff was going to produce them unless~they told us they
; 21
' had a problem and so forth.

22

Now if there is something different and you
23

want to have a hearing or a deposition right now before

us, go to it.

What was the first one? Do you have any
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1

objections to No. 1 or not?
2/N

I
\~-) MR. TURK: Judge Miller, let me just point out

3

that we have not discussed what she wants in the way of
4

discovery. What I discussed with Ms. Finamore before we
5

reconvened after the recess was that I would be willing
to respond to discovery, but I would like to see it in

writing. I have not discussed this generaly outline with

her yet. I haven't heard of it yet.

JUDGE MILLER: Well, I understand that. You are
10

doing it now. I either want you to produce it or if you
11

can't or won't produce it, just say so as we go along. We

don't want to keep having these arguments and conferences
13

and so on. We want to get it over with. You are here now.

All of you are here now. If you have a problem say so. I

q. ,, assumed that you didn't or you experts would have told

you by now that she asked for something that you couldn't

or shouldn't produce.

MR. TURK: I don't have experts with me who

will be responding to interrogatories or who are aware of

what material is necessary to respond.

JUDGE MILLER: But surely they have some

overall notion. You are approaching a trial, Mr. Turk,

and your experts have been in this case for some time. My

goodness, they can surely give us some indication whether
,

or not you can furnish information. I don't think it is
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1

that esoteric.

) MR. TURK: Judge Miller, as you know, we have a

very large staff working on the Clinch River project. The
4

person who is involved in preparing dose calculations and

in deriving the parameters that are necessary to be used

in dose calculations is not here nor is anybody from his

branch.
8

JUDGE MILLER: Who is it?
9

MR. TURK: The person who responded to the last
10

set of dose calculations.
11

JUDGE MILLER: Who can answer now next week?
12

What is the name, rank and serial number?
13

MR. TURK: We anticipate that Larry Bell will
14

be providing interrogatory answers.,,
15

x JUDGE MILLER: Larry Bell. Anybody else?
16

MR. TURK: It is quite possible that other

persons might be more familiar with certain information

and have to participate.

JUDGE MILLER: Give me their names. This is a
20

hearing now. I don't want to get into this business that
21

I John knows it all and he is not here. I am going to

suggest a deposition next week before the Board if

necessary. I am going to get to the bottom of this, and I

am not going to take excuses. I don't know how I can make
,

i 25

it more plain to you,

l
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1

MR. TURK: Other possible participants might
2

[~ \ be, but not necessarily will be, Cardis Allen, Jerry
\_) 3

Swift ---
4

JUDGE MILLER: Cardis Allen was here until just
5

a few minutes ago.
6

MR. TURK: He is not here now as far as I know.
7

JUDGE MILLER: I know. Why did you release him?
9

MR. TURK: I didn't release him.
9

JUDGE MILLER: Well, he isn't here and he was
10

here,

11
MR. TURK: I didn't hold him or release him,

12
Judge Miller.

13
JUDGE MILLER: Pardon me?

14

MR. TURK: I neither held him nor released him.

( I didn't know that the Board would ---
16

JUDGE MILLER: I assume he was no stranger to
17

you and that since you are now telling me that he has
18

familiarity with the subject matter that it would have
19

occurred to you as an elementary matter that if you are
20

going to have to get some advice from your experts you
21

would keep them here frankly.
22

I think that this whole thing is getting to be
23

a stall and I don't like it.
24

MR. TURK: Judge Miller ---
| 25
| JUDGE MILLER: I attempted sorely to set these
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|
1

matters for deposition next Monday or Tuesday. I will

Ih
tell you the truth right now. You bring in your witnessesk-s 3

and we will have the questions, because I think that
4

counsel are all playing games and you are dealing in this
5

matter unnecessarily.
6

I will exclude Mr. Edgar because so far he
7

hasn't told me he doesn't know anything.
B

But I think that on this matter and on other
9

matters which we are going to be going into that too much
10

time is being taken by dancing a waltz and we don't have
11

time for waltzes.
12

MR. EDGAR: I don't know whether it is helpful
13

or not, but the staff is at a disadvantage in not knowing
14

just what they have in terms of analysis. It seems to me

(''%) that it is a reasonable overlay from a discovery
15

,

16
standpoint, and the Chairman is more familiar than I with

17
the normal federal practice, that you give the person

la

what you have, and if it requires additional analysis,
19

there is no requriement to do it.
20

JUDGE MILLER: Yes, that is correct. We are not
21

imposing any burden on the staff or any other expert to
22

perform calculations or do matters which he or she hasn't
23

done. That is a perfectly cognizable rule that we have
24

always followed, and I assume you have that in mind, Mr.
25

Turk. We are not asking your people to go out and do

i
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1

something or produce something. We are talking discovery

() now as discovery.

MR. TURK: Okay.
4

JUDGE MILLER: Underlying document they relied
5

on and underlying assumptions. That is the past. If I
6

misled you by making you think that we expected staff
7

experts to go out and do something in response, then I
8

wish to clarify that we didn't mean that at all.
9

MR. TURK: Well, I still believe that in
10

responding to interrogatories we will need to draft some
11

language in the way of an answer and I am not sure who
12

will be involved in doing that. That is my hesitation in
13

identifying conclusively who the experts will be who
14

signed the interrogatory affidavits.
(~ 15( }j JUDGE MILLER: Well, you see the problem that

16
the Board has is that the various counsel and parties can

17
always think of somebody who knows it who isn't here when

18
the shoe gets tight and the shoe is tight right now for

19
all of us and we are trying to move along.

20
I don't mind you as a lawyer trying to protect

21
yourself, to cover your files, so to speak, but

22
self-protection I want to stop in the sense that I want

23
to be able to get some clear and direct commitments. If

24
you tell me Monday or Tuesday you are going to do so and

25
so, we will take it fo'r the record. You are a responsible
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1

lawyer and you have always played fair with the Board. I

[''/) have no quarrel with you or the staff.,

i \s- 3
MR, TURK: I can commit to you at this time

4
that we will provide whatever we can in the way of a

5

response to the discovery request once we see it in
6

writing with one qualification.
7

Some of the matters that Ms. Finamore is
d

requesting in the way of discovery relate to a table
9

which is contained in the March llth SER, and I think now
10

two months later it is a little late for her to be saying
11

give us the backup to what is present in the SER which we
12

saw two months ago.
13

JUDGE MILLER: Well,that may be true, but there
14

are some documents that the staff has produced to come to

() light that were a little late, too, that we are going to
,

~

i 16
be referring to, Mr. Turk. So really time is a problem

17
for all of us and none of us is totally virtuous.

18
Now with reference to what can be produced, it

19
certainly is not unreasonable to ask, and the staff can

. 20
| designate someone and in a reasonably short period of

21
time, what they relied upon in producing an SER that

22
itself took some time to produce. Now that just is not

23
beyond the bounds of reasonableness and we don't think

24 i

the staff means to imply that it is nor for us to infer
25

it. It is your SER or your supplement.
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'

1

What you based it on, my goodness, that is-

() always game in cross-examination, if nothing else. So

let's get right down to reality now as trial lawyers. You

or your people, your witnesses should know, and I think
'

5
they do know frankly. I have always found the staff

,

'
; experts were able to and did when it came right down to
?

7
it, reluctant as they may be in advance to make a

8 .

Commitment.
,

9
Now if your people have a problem with any of

- 10
! the things she has delineated, they will be typed up and

11-
you will see it Monday morning.- That should be

'12
sufficient. Now if you have got a. problem beyond that, al

13
right, we are not going to say that you may not. But,

! 14
first of all, pick up that phone now.

() Remember Comanche Peak. Pick up the phone and
16

get_yourselves into a three-way conference directly or by
"'

phone and a lot of these problems can be thrashed out

I because you are not unreasonable people.,But your
'

preliminary stance sure in hell keeps you from engaging
1

; 20
with some of the substantive matters until we can do a

'
21

| certain amount of dancing and we don't have time to
22

dance. Now that is all that I am saying .

I

23
All right. Now is there anytning now you have

4 24
heard, or in the reading of certain matters, and you will

25
read them in writing Monday morning when you get the

:
!
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1

transcript, but so far are there any matters that you
*

need to advise the Board or in fairness to tell opposing

counsel that you are not going to get or you have got a
4

problem or you can't or you won't so far?
5

MR. TURK: Judge Miller, I anticipate no
6

problem at this time. My expert is not here. If he tells
7

me otherwise, I will have to promptly advise Ms. Finamore
8

and the Board and I will do that next week if any problem
9

arises.

10
JUDGE MILLER: Fair enough. Well, do that by

11
Monday or Tuesday of next week, if you will, please.

12
MR. TURK: As soon as we see the written

13
interrogatory, I will confer with staff experts.

'14
JUDGE MILLER: Now wait a minute. You are going

to see this subject matter Monday morning in the
16

transcript. That should enable you to start I think,
17

unless there is something unusual.
18

MR. TURK: That is fine. We will do it that
19

way.
20'

'

JUDGE MILLER: If there is something unusual,
21

okay.4

'

22
Ms. Finamore, we are going to ask you now to

23
put them in writing, but we have asked the staff and we

24
ask you not to delay putting these things in writing

25
because we have seen how long that can take, too. We want

.
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I
to move right along with this matter where you say you

2() need the discovery, get you the information you are

entitled to and get this trial moving along as scheduled.
4

Now is there anything else that you haven't
5

described?
6

MS. FINAMORE: Yes, there is.
7

JUDGE MILLER: All right now is the time.
8

MS. FINAMORE: Regarding Table 2A, we wish the
9

staff to produce, if it has them, calculations showing
10

doses for the various isotope groups broken out as a
11

function of time or releases.
12

JUDGE MILLER: Wait a minute. I didn't get the
13

end now. You mumbled.
14

MS. FINAMORE: The releases as a function of

() time of the various isotopes listed in Table 2A.
16

JUDGE MILLER: Okay.
17

MS. FINAMORE: We would like any computer
18

printouts or other calculations that the staff has
19

performed showing if the doses in Table 2A change as a
20

result of different assumptions used in Table 1A
21

regarding the CDA.
22

MR. TURK: I don't understand that.
23

JUDGE MILLER: All right, explain that.
24

MS. FINAMORE: That is the sensitivity
25

analysis. For example, if the staff assumed a different
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1

fission product release in Table 1A, how that would

*

[} affect the doses in Table 2A and similarly for the other

parameters.

4
JUDGE MILLER: Do you understand it, Mr. Turk,

5
sufficiently?

6
MR. TURK: Yes.

7
MS. FINAMORE: We would also like any computer

8
printouts or other calculations that the staff have

9
performed which show different calculated doses for the

10
whole body organs or for the releases shown in Table 2A.

11
Also in the enclosure the staff states that

12
the scenario it used in developing this case was

," realistic, albeit, conservative, and we would like the

14
staf f to explain how the scenario can be both realistic

"() and conservative and specifically how the staff has

16
arrived at that conclusion.

17
JUDGE MILLER: Now aren't you quibbling there?

10
MS. FINAMORE: Well, there are actually ---

19
JUDGE MILLER: It seems to the Board that you

20
are. If you want information, fine. If you just want to

21
engage in maneuvers, forget it.

22 -

the staff hasMS. FINAMORE: Well, for example,
23

used what is called the set of conservative assumptions
,

24
in its SSST analysis and a set of " realistic assumptions"

25
in its CDA analysis, and that has referred to, for

TAYLOE ASSO CI A TES

O 162 5 I Street, N. W . - Suite 1004

W ashington, D.C. 20006
(202) 293-3950

i

i

. - -- .



|7205 "

|

1 example, in meteorology to 95 percent chi over Qs (X/Qs)

2 for a conservative assumption and 50 percent chi over Qs

3 (X/Qs) for a realistic assumption.
,

4 JUDGE MILLER: The question is in this instance

5 and in this Table 2A that you say you haven't had time to

6
analyze what did they use and wny, and that should be the

7 end of discovery and you can argue when you get to trial

8 or before us.

9 MS. FINAMORE: We would also like to know if

10 these doses include a calculation of puff release or dose

11 beyond 30 days.

12 Finally, we would like the staff to provide

13 the computer codes showing how they actually arrived at

l'
the Table 2A doses.

II
And we would request, as we have requested and

16 been provided with in the past, a chance to have somebody
17

on the staff, whether it be Mr. Bell or others, available

I0
to answer our questions and enable to interpret the

19 computer codes.

20
We have been able to do that in the past for

21
all the other computer codes provided by the staff

22 because in many cases they are not easy to translate and

23
we request the same opportunity in this instance.

24 '

JUDGE MILLER: Does the staff have any,

25 objection or problem with that?
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1 MR. TURK: I do have a problem with opening the

2 door to further discovery beyond this request. What they

3 are asking for is a second bite after we give them this

4 discovery.

5 We will make available the documents. We will

6 provide interrogatory answers, but I think our

7 obligations stop at that point and they should have the

e information and make the conclusions based on that

9 information that they wish to make and not continue with

10 informal discovery after the close of this response.

11 JUDGE MILLER: When was this information made

12 available to the intervenors, Mr. Turk?

13 MR. TURK: Just this week.

14 JUDGE MILLER: Just this week?

15 MS. FINAMORE: Yesterday.

16 JUDGE MILLER: Oh well, come on.

17 MR. TURK: The information was publicly

la available early.

19 JUDGE MILLER: I am not interested in publicly

20 available. I am interested in the responses to

21 interrogatories or those which you might have

22 anticipated. If it was just made available this week, Mr.

23 Turk, whereas it was generated on March 28th, we think

24 your position unreasonable.

25 MR. TURK; Judge Miller, there is one other
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1 point I would like to make.
01
(ms/ 2 JUDGE MILLER: Yes.

3 MR. TURK: Well, let me ask a question. Have you

4 overruled our objection to providing information relevant

5 to material contained in the SER itself?

6 JUDGE MILLER: Now, wait a minute. I didn't know

7 I had such an objection before us. State it again.

s MR. TURK: Earlier I had stated that some of the

9 parameters, in fact most of the parameters which went

10 into our CDA calculations are set forth in our March SER,

11 Table A51, and I objected to having to provide backup

12 information.

13 JUDGE MILLER: Yes, that will be overruled for

14 the reason that you are getting very late in trickling

['\' 15 down this information. You even trickeled pretty late

16 your response to their motion to extend time.

17 I think we have indicated before that the Board

la has the power and is inclined to use the power to

19 foreshorten time. I certainly would have expected Monday

20 or Tuesday to have the staff's response to this motion to

21 reschedule, which we did receive from the applicants.

22 So once again, it is not personally you, Mr.

23 Turk, but once again we expect the staff to foreshorten

24 time and not to stand to the last day.

25 MR. TURK: We don't intend to delay and that is
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1 why we are willing to ---

2 JUDGE MILLER: No, we don't think you are

3 delaying. No, we don't mean that. But we mean to get the

4 information in a timely fashion because when you hold out

5 to the last day, which may be otherwise permitted you,

6 but it isn't in this case, but when you do that, you then

7 project this very kind of argument that we get as to

a whether people have had a chance to analyze and respond

9 ot it. That is what the whole issue is about.

10 That is what we are asking the staff, and you

11 have for the most part voluntarily shortened time and

12 voluntarily provided a good deal of information and you

13 might have argued about it. We think the record should

e 14 fairly reflect that, too.

15 MR. TURK: I do have a further objection.

16 JUDGE MILLER: Okay, what is that?

17 MR. TURK: To having to provide informal

18 discovery after we have provided the formal response to

19 whatever it is intervenors request from us at this time.

20 JUDGE MILLER: Are you referring now to the

21 specific subject we are talking about?

22 MR. TURK: Yes.

2) JUDGE MILLER: In that event, it is overruled.

24 MR. TURK: Well, let me add one other point. Dr.

25 Cochran is the person for intervenors who will be

b)
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1 reviewing our response to intervenors' interrogatories.,

\m- 2 He will be out of the country until sometime in June and

3 I anticipate then what we will see is that in June while

4 we are busily preparing testimony for the hearing,

5 telephone calls will come in to various people at the

6 staff and they will either have to answer his questions

7 or say no, we are not required to, we are busy preparing

a testimony, discovery has closed and we would like to go

9 forward. And I would like to ask ---

10 JUDGE MILLER: I would tnink that the latter

11 answer would be entirely appropriate if that comes about.

12 People's travels, et cetera, are not going to impinge

is upon the orderly conduct of this hearing.

14 Now we are extending the time for some limited

15 discovery for some stated reasons, but we intend to keep

16 the opening and the follow-up strictly limited and

17 Strictly within the realm of necessity as determined by

la the Board.

19 That is why we are pressing you to furnish the

20 information for which you will get the written inquiries

21 to day, and whenever you get the other, but this is

22 enough for you to go on Monday, and within two or three

23 days to get the responses in or at least to get them

24 started, which we believe that you can do. By doing that

25 you will expedite, and you will also then enable the
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1

1 Board to prevent any further chewing of the apple, the
(~8
\s- 2 cherry or whatever your figure of speech is.

3 MR. TURK: We will start preparing responses as

4 soon as possible.

5 One last point, and I don't mean to quibble. I

6 certainly don't mean to quibble, Judge Miller. This

7 morning we did present a response to intervenors' motion

8 ot extend the discovery period. It is being served by

9 mail today formally. The actual cutoff date for our

10 response was next Monday. So by bringing it in by hand

11 this morning ---

12 JUDGE MILLER: Why made the cutoff date next

13 Monday?

14 MR. TURK: The rules.-w

~# 15 JUDGE MILLER: What rules?

16 MR. TURK: The time in which motions may be

17 responded to.

18 JUDGE MILLER: What time is that?

19 MR. TURK: The staff gets 15 days plus 5 where

20 service was by mail.

21 JUDGE MILLER: Well, wait a minute, I thought

22 service was by hand delivery.

23 MR. TURK: That is right, and that means that we

24 have 15 days.

25 JUDGE MILLER: So you don't get the five. So
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1 subtract your five. See, already you have misquoted yourfs

( )x-- 2 own rules to me.

3 MR. TURK: No. I am citing the rule, and I point

4 out that the staff's response would be due within 15

5 days, which makes it next Monday if we were filing it

6 along with the rules.

7 JUDGE MILLER: All right. But you are

a overlooking the fact that in Comanche Peak and other

9 rulings we have told all of you that we intend to

10 expedite and foresnorten the time requirements. We have

11 done it specifically by asking you either to hand

12 delivery or within one day when you do it by expedited

13 mail, and we intend for the time to be shortened. We

("S 14 don't intend for the staff to take the full 15 days. We

(''')
15 don't intend for the applicants to take the full 10 days.

16 This is true of everybody, and while it may

17 pinch, it pinches equally and we are all going to be held

la to the same thing. The same thing applies to intervenors.

19 We had to phone up one time to find out

20 something where they said they had hand delivered it, and

21 we hadn't gotten it for a week or ten days. It turned out

22 it had been delivered downtown. We had been over that

23 once with the intervenors. Our offices are here. When you

24 serve them by hand upon the Board, serve them at our East

25 West Towers offices.
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1 But we are shortening the time. That is the

\ 2 meaning of expedite. So we don't expect or want any of

3 the parties to take the full measure of time. If you want

4 us to spell it out, we will just give you a numerical

5 shortening. We are trying to leave it to your discretion,

6 and so far it has worked as a matter of fact.
7 Okay, next.

9 MS, FINAMORE: The next item we would like

9 additional discovery time or discovery on relates to

10 the ---

11 JUDGE MILLER: Now wait a minute. You are going

12 to a new subject now, or a new contention or area of

13 inquiry? I want to get this wrapped up before we go

s 14 ahead.

15 MS. FINAMORE: Well, the only thing remaining in

16 the last item is whether or not somebody would be

17 available to answer Certain questions on how to read the

18 computer codes that we are going to be provided with.

19 The staff has provided somebody to do that, Mr.

20 Thadani or Mr. Bell for each computer code that has been

21 provided to us in the past and we would like the same

| 22 opportunity.
; ,

23 JUDGE MILLER: All right. Let me inquire what

24 the disposition of counsel on behalf of the staff is to

25 that.
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1 MR. TURK: Since Dr. Cochran is the person who

2 would be making those inquiries, and since Dr. Cochran

3 will be out of the country for the rest of this month and

4 will not return until June, while staff is busy preparing

5 testimony, I would oppose the request as being too late

6 and as interfering ---

7 JUDGE MILLER: Well, you are the assumption that

a we are talking about June.

9 MR. TURK: That is what we are talking about,

10 sir.

11 JUDGE MILLER: What do you think the date today

12 is?,

13 MR. TURK: Dr. Cochran is unavailable starting

14 in ---

15 JUDGE MILLER: I don't care. You are giving me

16 extraneous factors and you are reasoning from there. Now

17 just stick to the record. I am asking you today is the

18 13th.

19 MR. TURK: That is correct.

20 JUDGE MILLER: All right. I am asking you next

21 Monday, Tuesday and Wednesday to provide this

22 information.

23 MR. TURK: We will have people available.

24 JUDGE MILLER: Pardon me?

25 MR. TURK: We will have people available next
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I week to respond to answers if they come in to questions.-

4
% 2 JUDGE MILLER: I am now instructing intervenors

3 that the follow Monday, which will be what date, will be

4 their last opportunity to ask anybody anything. The 23rd,

5 okay.

6 The intervenors will have until the close of

7 business, and I close business at 4 o' clock, the close of

a business on tne 23rd, which is Monday, to make any

9 further inquiries, protexts, exhortations or whatever

10 occurs to you as a result of the information to be

11 furnished next week, and hopefully by Wednesday of next

12 week by the staff. Okay, got it?

'. 3 Does this conclude now this area that you have

14 been talking about, the A51 and the May lith filing of

15 this information from SSER No. 2 supplement?

16 MS. FINAMORE: Yes.

17 JUDGE MILLER: Okay. Do you have any thing in

18 addition?

19 MS. FINAMORE: Yes.

20 JUDGE MILLER: What is it?

21 MS. FINAMORE: The second item relates to the

22 information that Mr. Edgar was referring to earlier that

23 they informed us on Tuesday was available only in Oak

24 Ridge. Now this relates ---

25 JUDGE MILLER: Well, he has already agreed to

(~
I b),
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1 bring it up here, hasn't he?
\

\~ # 2 MS. FINAMORE: That is correct.

3 JUDGE MILLER: Well, then isn't moot.

4 MR. EDGAR: Mr. Chairman, I would like to

5 cegister ---

6 MS. FINAMORE: I,f I can complete my sentence.
7 JUDGE MILLER: Hold it, hold it. Just a minute

9 now.

9 MS. FINAMORE: I said it relates to that. I have

10 an additional matter I would like to raise.

11 MR. EDGAR: Well, I would ---

12 JUDGE MILLER: Wait. Let's first of all cover

13 this matter.

14 Mr. Edgar, now what was your commitment to

15 produce up here because of the constraints of time?

16 MR. EDGAR: I have put in the order to get them

17 up here. If we have got another matter, Mr. Chairman, we

18 ought to be able to confer and work something out. I

19 don't know what it is, but I don't know why we have to

20 bother you with that.

21 JUDGE MILLER: I don't either.

22 MR. EDGAR: And I haven't heard about any

23 additional requests or complaints. I thought we had

24 everything resolved.

25 MS. FINAMORE: Mr. Edgar, if I may complete my
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I sentence, I think it will become clear that this is a

s/ 2 matter that was raised in our motion for extension of

3 time for discovery. You were made aware of that. This is

4 the subject of this prehearing conference.

5 Now all I wish to say is that ---

6 JUDGE MILLER: This isn't a prehearing

7 conference and isn't in response to anything. This is a

a conference with counsel. Let me make that real plain and

9 clear. I am not getting into the rules of prehearing

10 conferences. Look at your notice and look at our prior

11 practice.

12 MS. FINAMORE: Mr. Edgar informed me this

13 morning that the documents that we requested over one

N 14 month ago will be available, or he will put in the orders
, .

15 for them to be made available in Washington.

16 JUDGE MILLER: What are those documents?

17 MS. FINAMORE: These documents relate -- I can

la give you interrogatory request, if you allow me one

19 Second.

20 JUDGE MILLER: What page? I am looking at your

21 motion. Do you have it said up there in your motion?

22 (Brief pause.)

23 MS. FINAMORE: It is discussed on page 3.

24 JUDGE MILLER: Three, okay. And where or what

25 does it relate to?

D
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i
1 MS. FINAMORE: In the middle of the first '

2 paragraph. It relates to basic documents on probabilistic

3 risk anlaysis and failure mode and effects analysis.

4 JUDGE MILLER: Okay. Why is it that you have

5 requested -- every time you come to something it is the

6 core of your case. You must have so many cores.

7 MS. FINAMORE: It is the same one..

8 JUDGE MILLER: The same one, all right.

9 MS. FINAMORE: Yes, the probability and

10 consequences of CDAs.

11 JUDGE MILLER: What are these basic documents on

12 probabilistic risk analysis and failure mode and effects

13 analysis which were requested by you and which Mr. Edgar

g 14 has ordered to have produced and has told you he will

x) 15 have brought up here? Could you just summarily tell us

16 they are or what we are talking about?

17 MR. EDGAR: I can tell you.

18 MS. FINAMORE: I have got the motion right here.
e

19 MR. EDGAR: It is reliability type analyses,

20 FMEAs, failure mode effects analyses and things like

21 that.

22 MS. FINAMORE: If I may point the Board to

23 intervenors' first set of construction permit

24 interrogatories and request to produce to applicants

25 filed the 7th of April. The applicants responded to it on

\
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1 the 10th of May by saying that the documents were_

2 available in Oak Ridge.

3 Here is what they refer to. Identify and

4 provide all documents, exclusive of CRBR P1, 2 and 3, the

5 PSAR and studies that clearly have no bearing on the

6 question of whether the CDA should be a DBA which contain

7 (a) CRBR probabilistic risk analyses statements and

a conclusions, (b) quantitative fault tree analyses

9 performed on CRBR and its principal safety systems, (c)

10 event tree analyses performed on CRBR and its principal

11 safety systems, (d) failure mode analyses performed on

12 CRBR and its principal safety systems and (e) common mode

13 failure analyses performed on CRBR and its principal

14 safety systems.

15 This is the information that intervenors wish

16 to litigate on in contention 1B, which relates to, for

17 example, B1, the methodology described in the PSAR places

la reliance upon a fault tree and event tree analysis, that

19 this the analysis that we are requesting from the

20 applicants.

21 B2 states that applicants' projected data base

22 to be used in the reliability program is inadequate.

23 Applicants have not established that the projected data

24 base encompasses all credible failure mode and human

25 elements.
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- 1 Four is another example. Applicants have not

2 established that the test program used for their

3 reliability program will be completed.

4 The information that we have requested from the

5 applicants is the very subject of contention la, and we

6 cannot litigate that issue without recourse to that

7 information.

8 All I am requesting at this time is that when

9 we do eventually get this information, which we were

10 unable to even ask for in the LWA proceeding, that we

11 have an opportunity to conduct limited discovery on the

12 matters contained in that information which we have seen g

13 for the first time.

14 JUDGE MILLER: Mr. Edgar.

15 MR. EDGAR: This is brand new. Now this is the

16 first time we have heard this one. I couldn't figure out

17 for a while there what was going on, but it seems to me *

,

la that the documents are going to be available here in my

19 colleague Mr. Luck's office downtown. They are ready

20 Monday morning at 8 o' clock sharp and somebody can go

21 look at them.

22 JUDGE MILLER: The documents will be available

23 in Washington, D. C. Monday the 16th.

24 MR. EDGAR: Yes. Come look at them, fine.

25 JUDGE MILLER: You are producing them for
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1 inspection; is that it?

\/ 2 MR. EDGAR: That is correct. We really have a

3 significant problem if we are going to have " limited

4 follow-up discovery" unbeknownst to us and undisclosed at

5 this time while Dr. Cochran travels for a month.
6 We will confer with the intervenors. If they

7 need something at the time, I think we will be

a reasonable. That is what I can commit to, is if someone

9 needs information, we will comply with reasonable

10 requests.

11 JUDGE MILLER: Well, the Board is disposed to

12 leave it at that point, Ms. Finamore. We did and do feel

13 that the discovery should have been completed or

14 substantially completed by this time. You have shown us
- O-~! 15 certain information and we have extended the time in the

16 case of the staff about a week plus a little bit. In the

17 Case of the applicants, as we understand it, thece

18 documents will be available on Monday the 16th of May

19 here in Washington.

20 MR. EDGAR: They need only contact Mr. Luck and

21 he can arrange it. He sits right in the area where they

( 22 are.

23 JUDGE MILLER: All right. We are not reopening

24 discovery. I hope you understand that. So therefore you

25 getting the documentary information you have requested. I

O
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1 should think that would be the end of it.
<

2 Now if you want to negotiate, Mr. Edgar hass-

J 3 indicated that if you ask for some information that they

4 will attempt to be reasonable.

5 MS. FINAMORE: Well, you have denied our request

6 and there is nothing more I can say.

7 JUDGE MILLER: Well, that will be the ruling.

9 MS. FINAMORE: Our basic problem, if I may move

9 on, has to do with the fact that in the six weeks of time

10 that the Board has given us to file discovery requests we

11 have been unundated with work in responding to the

12 applicants' and the staff's interrogatories, in preparing

13 our appeal for this case and in reading the SER and the
i

'
14 underlying documents.

15 The simply fact is this. Dr. Cochran is our

16 only staff witness, as you understand. He is the only

17 person Who is available and knowledgeable enough to

18 review the SER, the underlying documents by'Theofanous
i 19 and by others, the reliability program that applicants

20 have or indicated that they will provide to us next week

21 and the information that the staff is going to provide to

| 22 us next week.

23 Dr. Cochran has simply not had enough time to ?

24 review the documents that are available by the staff in

L 25 Bethesda, particularly the Theofanous document, and the

f
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1 other background calculations that have been made to

2 date, let alone completed his review of the SER because-

3 he was answering the discovery.

4 As you can see, the information that is crucial

5 to our case, that is not even goiag to be available until

6 next week, he still has not had time to rev.tew that yet

7 because they have not yet been provided. ,are in a

a squeeze at this point.

9 The Board has said in its partial initial

10 decision that a heavy burden is upon all parties to this

11 proceeding to provide sufficient evidence tc permit a

12 resolution of the question of whether core disruptive

13 accidents should be included within the design basis.

14 If the Board wishes the intervenors to perform

15 an adequate job of raising issues and providing

16 information and sifting through evidence of staff and

17 applicants to point out inadequacies and to provide our

la own affirmative evidence, we simply need more time. That

19 is as simple as it is.

20 The schedule was too short for us, as we have

21 mentioned a number of times. We are at the point where we

22 are getting to hearings and we are telling the Board

23 right now we haven't completed our anlaysis.

24 The staff and applicants have also indicated

25 that some of the answers that we gave in interrogatories
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1 are that we have not yet completed our analysis and that

2 we can't answer their questions, and they have asked us

3 to update those when we do complete our analysis.

4 So we have to complete work on the SER, not

5 only to prepare our own affirmative case, but to respond

6 to interrogatories that have been promulgated by the

7 staff and the applicants. We simply can't do it.

8 That is the reason for our motion for an

9 extension of time for discovery. If we are going to have

10 a hearing that is meaningful and full and based on design

11 details, as we had all anticipated, we simply are going

12 to nave to have more time. That is the only way we are,

13 going to be able to participate in this hearing.

14 JUDGE MILLER: Mr. Edgar,

O-
f 15 MR. EDGAR: Your Honor, we responded to

16 intervenors' motion, which I think you have just heard

17 summarized in Capsule form. In our judgment, intervenors

la have no basis whatsoever for any form of relief on the

19 cchedule.

20 I would note, however, that the parties and the

21 Board today have extended considerable relief to

22 intervenors. Intervenors have complained of a lack of

23 time and ability to prepare. Discovery has been closed.

24 Nonetheless, intervenors have been afforded an addit,ional
23 opportunity.
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i

1 As for the schedule itself and intervenors'-

2 contention that the schedule is too short, intervenors

| 3 have known since March 29th in the Board's order what the
4 schedule looks like. The intervenors have known since

5 March 10th that discovery was opened. Intervenors must

6 have known that this Board takes schedules seriously and
|

7 places obligations and burdens on the parties to meet

8 their schedules.

9 We have been before this Board now since

10 February of 1982. It is incredible to me that intervenors

11 could argue some form of surprise when the Board's order

12 has been staring them in the face since March 29th.

13 The simple fact is this, Your Honor. Since

14 discovery has been opened, intervenors have not applied

15 themselves to undertaking their obligations in connection

16 with this case.

17 You have also heard that starting tomorrow Dr.

la Cochran will be out of the country at least until June.

19 If the intervenors cannot prepare because Dr.Cochran is

20 out of the country on other matters, why should the

21 parties underwrite that expense in terms of the cost of

22 delay?
'

23 We submit that the Board has bent over

24 backwards, that the Board has done everything reasonable

25 to establish a schedule for these proceedings and that no

!

l
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1 relief whatever is warranted.
Ok/ 2 JUDGE MILLER: What about the argument that you

3 have inundated them, you and the staff have inundated

4 intervenors with discovery requests?

5 MR. EDGAR: I find that somewhat -- well, I will

6 not use that word. I don't think that is a reasonable

I argument. The fact is that we have had a burden on

8 discovery in these proceedings through the entire course

9 which I think is unparalleled in the history of NRC

10 proceedings.

11 I think also that the Board should be aware

12 that we have undertaken discovery against the intervenors

13 which is not at all unreasonable in scope,

l 14 If the Board examines it, you will see that we

15 filed four sets of interrogatories. That in fact has been
*

16 very helpful to the course of 'he proceedings because the

17 result of that was dropping a number of contentions
,

le which, incidentally, we had to bring to the Board's

19 attention with a motion to dismiss.

20 I might also add that we filed a notice of

21 deposition to depose Dr. Cochran for two days on the 5th

22 and 6th of May. We made an accommodation to the

23 intervenors to extend the date for that deposition so

24 that they would have more time to complete their written

25 discovery responses.
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1 As it has turned out, the current plan,

2 conferring amongst counsel, is that we will reduce that

3 deposition to this afternoon to several hours.

~

4 We think there has been some give and take. We

5 think we have given a lot, and we don't believe that the

6 intervenors have a serious case.

7 JUDGE MILLER: Staff.

9 MR. TURK: Judge Miller, we filed a brief paper

9 in response to intervenors' motion this morning, and for

10 the most part I would simply rely upon that pleading. It

11 is consistent with the statements made by Mr. Edgar for

12 applicant, and I don't feel a need to add very much to

13 that which he has already stated today, except let me add

i la a few brief matters.

15 The first is that the prior discovery in this

16 proceeding has been exhaustive. It did not terminate'

17 before the CP hearing phase was commenced, but rather we

la updated responses to all of the vast number of discovery

19 request 5 which apply to the CP stage.

20 So intervenors in fact have not just filed two

21 rounds of discovery against us and two rounds against the

22 applicant, but in fact they have had something like,

23 well, certainly more than 20. I don't know whether it is

24 20, 30, 40 or 50 before you start adding up all the

25 number of different sets of interrogatories which we have
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1 had to update our responses to.

2 There is plenty of information available at

3 chis time through the discovery that has transpired for

4 intervenors to make their case either in

5 cross-examination or to refute through direct

6 examination.

7 Also, as I pointed out in our response to

e intervenors' motion, tney haven't indicated what specific

9 additional discovery they feel they need to conduct, and

10 that is very significant.

11 What we see here essentially is just a request

12 for more time without any indication as to precisely why

13 that time is necessary and why intervenors can't proceed

14 with the information already made available.--

' _ 15 MS. FINAMORE: May I respond?

16 JUDGE MILLER: If counsel is through. I am not

17 sure.

18 MR. TURK: I would like to make one other point.

19 In intervenors' motion they state that staff and

20 applicants have impeded intervenors' discovery efforts,

21 and I would like to point out that is certainly not true

22 for the staff. We have provided timely responses toi

23 interrogatories. As the Board itself is aware through

24 today's proceedings, we have agreed voluntarily to

25 produce additional discovery.

m
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1 When intervenors' motion alerted us to the fact

2 that they needed more time to complete discovery

3 responses, we suggested and intervenors agreed to

4 reschedule Dr. Cochran's deposition, which had been set

5 for May 9th, to a date after the May 10th close of

6 discovery. We conducted that deposition for the most part

7 yesterday.

a Let me side step for a moment. I wish to advise,

9 the Board that we have not yet received the responses to

10 interrogatories which we are waiting for from

11 intervenors. Those answers to our second set of

1: interrogatories were due earlier this week. At

13 yesterday's deposition of Dr. Cochran we were informed by

14 counsel that the answers were not yet ready for

15 distribution and hopefully will be ready today.

16 So the Board may wish to note that discovery

17 has closed and we are still waiting for answers, on

18 timely answers to prior discovery requests.

19 JUDGE MILLER: Do you wish to respond, Ms.

20 Finamore?

21 MS. FINAMORE: Yes, if I may. First of all, we

| 22 fully understand and agree with applicants to the effect
|

23 that the Board considers the schedule very important and

24 that has been the case throughout the proceeding.:

25 That is the reason why we made every effort to
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1 comply with that schedule and only filed our motion when

2 it became clear that the volume of material we still had

3 to go through and still respond to applicants' and
,

4 staff's interrogatory requests, deposition requests and

! 5 requests for documents was simply too much for us to

6 handle.

7 We have tried in every way we could until we

a filed this motion to fit within the Board's schedule, and

9 that is the reason why we filed it several weeks ago,

10 because that was the time when it became clear to us that

11 to continue our participation in this proceeding, we just

12 cannot do it, and that is the reason for that.

13 The applicants and the staff have made noises

14 to the effect that we waited to begin discovery. I mightO 15 point out that we started the discovery on the documents

16 as soon as they became available, and that in fact the

17 applicants' and tne staef's eirst discovery requests were

18 filed at the exact same time as ours were. That was the

19 first time that any of the parties could get geared up to:

20 start on the discovery, and it is the very short close of

21 discovery that has-been the problem for all of us.,

22 Now the staff has made a point and the

23 applicants have also that we can rely on previous

24 discovery in this case. Now the previous discovery to
i

| 25 which they are referring is largely irrelevant to the
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.

1 issues that are going to be litigated at the construction

\_ 2 permit proceeding.

3 Much of the discovery that we conducted earlier

4 related to computer codes that are no longer used by the

5 applicants, and the answers that we got from them caused

6 us to drop the contentions.

7 Additionally, the discovery that we conducted

8 in 1975 related to a different core design, the

9 homogeneous core, and the answers that we got then are no

10 longer relevant to the Clinch River Breeder Reactor as it

11 now exists.

12 Now lots of our other discovery is on issues

13 that are no longer in issue here that relate to NEPA

14 issues, safeguards, for example, fuel cycle facilitiesf~3
'' 15 and alternative sites.

16 I don't see how the staff or applicants can

17 argue that since we got so much discovery on alternative

sites tbat we are now prepared to go to a totally18

| 19 dicterent proceeding and litigate issues that have no

| 20 relationship to alternative sites.

| 21 I mean the simple fact is this. Do we want an

22 adequate trial preparation time or not? The applicants

23 are not going to be harmed in any way by giving us

24 additional discovery time or trial time. As we all know,

25 they are'not even going to be ready to do any
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1 construction permit work this year, and in fact ---0,
2 JUDGE MILLER: That really is not relevant to

3 this Board, is it? We could care less.

4 MS. FINA!iORE: Well, the question of whether or

5 not other parties would be harmed by grant of our motion

6 is a relevant issue I think at this point.

7 JUDGE MILLER: Well, not whether they are going

a to be harmed in terms of when they are going to construct

9 or not construct. Those are not matters that this Board

10 determines and they are not matters we want to waste a

11 lot of time with. We are conducting an adjudicatory

12 adversary type of proceeding, first LWA 1 and now

13 construction permit.

"N 14 It may be true that some of the matters have

C^#i
15 changed. They have certainly changed since 1975, but I am

16 not sure they have changed that much since 1982. At any

17 rate, we opened up discovery and we were surprised that

is people didn't start discovery, by the way, as soon as our

19 partial initial decision Came out. We thought you Would

20 be straining at the leash, all this information you told

21 us was so important to you and so vital in August and

22 October and so forth. Here it was available and just

23 everybody sat around.

24 We then issued the order opening discovery, and

25 we didn't really think we should have had to, but we
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1 opened it and then later on we dismissed the LWA 2. We

2 didn't think that was necessary. It was well known to all

3 of you that we weren't going to have any. That was just

4 proforma. That wasn't a matter of substance. That didn't
5 change anything.

6 You have been telling us for almost a year now

7 how important it was to get to matters that related to

e specific design. We opened the thing up for you and every
9 sat around or did Whatever they did. I don't Care and I

10 understood there were personal matters, but nothing was

11 done in order to get this vitally necessary information.

12 Well, we set our schedule, we intend to abide

13 by it and we hope that you will be able to participate in

14 a meaningful way, but whether you do or not is the-)
'

15 problem of the parties and their counsel. It is not the

16 problem of the Board because we made our position known

17 for a long time and we are not about to deviate from it.

la We have tried to exercise our discretionary

|
19 powers to get you information where it was necessary. We

20 made it short. We have indicated to the staff and we have

| 21 asked the staff to provide information faster probably

22 than they have done in ten years and they are trying to

23 be helpful.

24 Now we are going to ask you the same thing,
l
| 25 because we are going to put a cutoff on you just about

|

| 'N
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1 equally promptly and we are going to go right ahead with

2 our prefiled testimony insofar as you want to and

3 motions, if there be any, and you know the date.

he will get the place and it will probably be4

5 the same place. There will be an order coming our pretty

6 shortly, but it will be in Oak Ridge and it will be the

7 same place where you met with us on two occasions last

a year. So you can prepare your travel plans accordingly.

9 Now is there anything further?

10 MR. EDGAR: Mr. Chairman, I wonder if I could

11 get some advice from Judge Linengerber on one of the

12 points in the Board's 31st of March memorandum.

13 JUDGE MILLER: That is going to come up a little

14 bit later because we have got some more for you. We have-~

\~
15 got about five or six more that will be explained to you

16 and then made a part of the order.

17 MR. EDGAR: Fine.

18 JUDGE MILLER: So we will want to handle it

19 probably all at the same time.

20 MR. EDGAR: Okay, but there were two technical

21 issues that I wanted to get some clarification on.

22 JUDGE MILLER: You will be given ample

23 opportunity.

24 Do you have anything further on this point?

25 JUDGE LINENBERGER: Judge Miller, there is one

O
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1 point that I would like clarification on. I think I haveO
k/ 2 heard from Ms. Finamore specifics with respect to

3 contention 1B and what kinds of information her client
4 needs to prepare them to litigate that one. Then we have

5 heard an overall discussion of the motion and the -

6 problems of getting ready for the hearing.

7 I should like to inquire are there other

8 specific contentions that 1B, Ms. Finamore, that are

9 Snarls or bottlenecks or hurdles here? You have mentioned

10 that one. Any others?

11 MS. FINAMORE: Yes, there is.

12 JUDGE LINENBERGER: Would you enumerate them for

13 us, please.

14 MS. FINAMORE: One matter of particular concern-

'~# 15 to us relates to the question of an energetic CDA. Now .in

16 the SER for the first time it was indicated that

17 additional measures might be taken or would be taken by

18 the applicant to limit or mitigate the effects or the

19 probability of an energetic CDA.

20 Now the background documents on this issue ---

21 JUDGE LINENBERGER: Excuse me for interrupting

22 here, but can you answer my question first and then if

23 you want to relate it to CDA energetics, fine. You

24 started off quite some time ago flagging contention 1B,

25 that you were going to have a problem getting ready to

O
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1 handle. I asked if there were other contentions, you said
\

-

x/ 2 yes, and then you went to the subject of CDA energetics.

3 Can you tell me which other contentions you

4 have a problem with.

5 MS. FINAMORE: Excuse me, Judge Linenberger. I

6 am referring now to contention lA which relates to CDAs,

7 and that would include in my mind both core melt and core

a energetic type CDAs.

9 The questions that are raised in our

10 contentions 2A through D, which now are subsumed under

11 contention 3C are also impacted by the information that

12 we have not yet had time to sufficient digest and

13 analyze.

14 MR. EDGAR: May I respond to that because therefg
}

15 was ---

16 JUDGE MILLER: Well, I am not sure I know what

17 she is talking about, first. I was going to wait until

18 you finished, Ms. Finamore, but you say information. What

19 do you mean?

20 MS. FINAMORE: In particular, I am referring

21 once again to the dose calculations relating to core

22 disruptive accidents and the impacts of those dose,

1

23 calculations as well as any discussions of what the

24 probabilities of those types of accidents would be upon

; 25 the site suitability source term analysis.
I

i (~%
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1 JUDGE MILLER: I don't think anybody knows whatp
'

2 you are talking about. You have lost us.
''

3 MS. FINAMORE: For example, we argued in our LWA

1 testimony that the site suitability source term chosen4

5 by the staff was inadequate and that it should have

6 included 10 percent of the plutonium rather than one

7 percent of the plutonium to include core disruptive

e accidents that have been analyzed througout the

9 proceeding, and that includes energetic CDAs as well as

10 non-energetic CDAs.

11 Now new information has come up regarding the

12 probability and consequences of energetic CDAs that are

13 included in the background documents that we noted in our

/^g 14 motion for an extension of time for discovery, in

''

15 particular, the document on page 2 which relates to an

16 assessement of CRBR core disruptive accident energetics

17 by T. G. Theofanous, and C. R. Bell, and it is two

la compendium documents.

19 We have not had a chance to complete our review
:

20 of those documents and thus have not had a chance to ask
21 any interrogatory questions whatsoever on them. So we are

22 severely limited in our ability to discuss the CDA
|

23 energetic issue.

24 MR. EDGAR: May I respond to that?

25 JUDGE MILLER: Was that your document?

/^\
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1 MS. FINAMORE: The staff's.

O
\_/ 2 JUDGE MILLER: It is the staff's, isn't it?

3 MR. EDGAR: Yes, but there is a very fundamental

4 point here which has caused some confusion. We are

5 basically back in the mode that we were this morning

6 where we are wandering all over the lot trying to

7 bootstrap some extra iSShes into the Contentions.

8 Let's start with energetics. The only

9 contention that intervenors had relating to energetics

10 was in contention 2H. Contention 3C doesn't address the

11 energetics. The difference is that the energetics

12 analysis deals with whether you are going to get any

13 prompt effects that could challenge containment. The melt

,f- 14 through analysis is longer term and deals with longer
\ )/''

15 term responses.

16 There is a clear disctinction. Intervenors have

17 withdrawn contention 2F, G and H. They are now arguing

18 before this Board, and I will say frankly disingenuously,

19 that they need discovery on this issue when they have

20 withdrawn the contention.

21 Now Ms. Finamore also suggested that, well, it

22 is within lA. The simple fact is lA deals with the

23 question of wnether a CDA should be a design basis

24 accident. It does not deal with the energetics issue.'

25 We think that this is a red herring plainly,
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I clearly and this is no basis for additional discovery.,

(%
\ 2 JUDGE MILLER: You know, the word

3 "disingenuously" has always intrigued me. Is it better to

4 be ingenuous than disingenuous or which?

5 MR. EDGAR: I am not sure. I wish you hadn't

6. asked that.

7 (Laugnter.)

8 JUDGE MILLER: I never know what I am being

9 insulted.

10 (Laughter.)

11 MR. EDGAR: Well, that is right, but let me see

12 if I can put it in plain language. 2F, G and H is the

13 only contention they have in this area and it is out of

14 the proceedings. We have already argued it this morning7-s
''' 15 and now they are coming back in and telling this Board

16 they need discovery on it.

17 That, sir, I don't know whether it is

le disingenuous or not, as I stand corrected by Judge Miller

19 ---

20 JUDGE MILLER: I didn't correct you. I was just

21 curicus as to which is worse.

22 MR. EDGAR: Well, I am going to retract the word

; 23 and say that it is baloney.

24 (Laughter.)

25 JUDGE MILLER: I think I understand your point.
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1 MS. FINAMORE: I strongly object to that3

s 2 characterization of my ---

3 JUDGE MILLER: First now let me hear from the
4 staff and then we will give you a chance to respond.

5 Staff, you haven't your shot yet at

6 disingenuity or whatever it is.

7 (Laughter.)

8 MR. TURK: I have got nothing to add, Your

9 Honor.

10 JUDGE MILLER: Okay.

11 Now are there responses?

12 Ms. Finamore.

13 (Pause.)

14 MR. TURK: I am sorry, are you asking the staff~'

''
15 to respond?

16 JUDGE MILLER: Not u:less you want to, and I

17 understood you to say you didn't Care to.

18 MR. TURK: No, I would like to respond briefly

19 to intervenors' argument about what is affected at this

20 time.

21 JUDGE MILLER: Sure, go right ahead.

22 MR. TURK: First of all, I must have misheard or

23 perhaps intervenors misspoke when they indicated that

24 there is something in the SER which identifies for the

25 first time that applicants might take additional steps to

N TAYLOE ASSO CIA TES
162 5 I Street, N.W . - Suite 1004

W ashington, D.C. 20006
(202) 293-3950

__ _ . _ _ -__ - _ _ _ _ . _ _ _



7240

1 mitigate the CDA energetics.1

10
\w/ 2 I am not sure why she says that it is in the

3 SER for the first time. I am not sure what she is

4 referring to. But certainly whatever she was referring to

5 must have been present sooner in documents presented to

6 us by the applicants.

7 In terms of whether energetics are part of the

8 contention or not, now that contention 2 is out, it is

9 our view that energetics principally was part of

10 contention 2.

11 We have also looked at it, however, as

12 conceivably part of contention 3, although our view is

13 that with the dropping of contention 2, energetics really

14 is no longer an issue in the case.~~

''- 15 Contention 3A indicates a view that neither

16 applicants nor staff have adequately analyzed accident

17 possibilities of greater frequency or consequence than

Id those which are included in the design basis, and it is

19 conceivable that energetics might be viewed as part of

20 that contention, although we believe that really it

21 shouldn't be. It really should be viewed as something

22 within contention 2 alone and therefore it is no longer

23 part of the case.

24 I have one last comment. I have to agree with

25 Mr. Edgar that we are hearing again arguments presented
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1 earlier as to what needs to be done with respect to SSST

2 matters. In our view that is a closed issue. What we

3 intend to do now is present testimony dealing with CDAs

4 and to indicate our view as to why they should not be

5 included in the DBA and present the' full background of

6 our analysis to support the view.

7 We don't intend to relitigate SSST, nor do I

o think there is any reason to, or do I understand the

9 Board to have required us to do so in its prior order.

10 MS. FINAMORE: If I may respond.

11 JUDGE MILLER: Yes.

12 MS. FINAMORE: Just this morning the Board and

13 the parties came to the conclusion that the actual,

14 wording of contentions 2A through B did not have to be-

15 litigated because if new information was available that

16 it was appropriate to consider at the CP stage on the

17 issues related to contentions 2A through B that the

la intervenors would be able to bring it up under the

19 general wording of contention 3C.

20 Contention 3C says accidents associated with

21 core melt through following loss of core geometry and

22 sodium concrete interactions have not been adequately'

23 analyzed.

24 Contention lA talks about core disruptive

25 accidents. Contention lA makes no distinction between

'(,, TAYLDE ASSO CIA TES
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1 core melt through accidents and core energetic accidents.
7_

- 2 The question is whether a core melt accident, a

3 core energetic disruptive accident or both should be

4 incuded within the CRBR design basis.

5 I find it incredible to understand that

6 applicants and staff are now coming back and saying that

7 the issues in Contention lA only relate to core melt

e accidents and not core disruptive accidents. This

9 contention was at issue in the LWA.

10 Intervenors presented testimony on contention

11 lA that had to do with energetic core disruptive

12 accidents, and we feel that core disruptive accidents

13 means an accident which can explode or which can melt.

14 That was the understanding and none of the--

\#
15 parties have raised any objections to date, and I don't

16 see how they can logically claim that we can't raise the

17 issue about the probability and consequences of a core

1 la energetic accident as bearing on the question of whether

19 it should be included within the design basis.

20 That has never been mentioned before and I find

21 no reason now why a whole new area of discovery based on

22 new information regarding tha energetics of a CDA should

23 now be simply excluded from the proceeding. The purpose.

24 of this proceeding and these contentions, and we are all

25 here today to discuss core disruptive accidents.

(~h'

(,) TAYLDE ASSO CI A T ES
16 2 5 I S tr e e t, N. W . - S uit e 10 0 4

W ashington, D.C. 20006
(202) 293-3950

.__



7243

1 JUDGE LINENBERGER: I should like to make an

2 observation here. I hear things being discussed that

3 comprises either a misunderstanding of the nature of the

4 proceeding we are moving toward or else maybe it is just

5 being a little careless with language.

6 In the first place, some of you have talked

7 about things that are not in issue and I think you mean

8 things that are not in contention. If you don't please

9 understand that, there is a vast distinction to be made

10 and the Board makes it between things in issue and things

11 in contention. This is not an operating license hearing

12 and there are many things at issue in the Board's mind

13 that are going to come up. Energetics will indeed be one

14 of them.,

''
15 So I just did want anybody to, you, too, Ms.

16 Finamore, to assume that energetics is not an issue.

17 Let's confine it to whether it is or is not under the

18 umbrella of one or other of the contentions, and I don't

19 see personally how you can possibly litigate 3C without

20 getting into the question of energetics, dose

21 consequences and the whole smear.

22 On the subject of energetics, while we are on

23 it, the Board was a little bit displeased to read in the

'

24 SER and to read in staff responses to certain

25 interrogatories references to the Theofanous report,

<
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1 NUREG CR-3224, which report had not been served on the
'

[\s), ,

2 Board, and it took the Board almost a month to get a

3 copy, and then it was not a bound copy, it wasn't even a

4 stapled copy, but it was a bunch of paper wrapped in

5 rubberbands.

6 NUREG CR-3224 further refers the reader to

7 something called "CRBR Energetics Review Compendium," and

8 that is where the reader should look if he wants to

9 really explore the background of 3224. That has never

10 been served on the Board.

11 I don't know whether the intervenors have had

12 service of 3224 or the compendium, but I just wanted to

13 make the point that, as long as we are talking about

14 energetics, it is an important issue in the Board's mind(~s
'"'h\

15 and there has not been quite the voluntary flow of

16 documents that the Board would expect to see here.

17 So that was all I had to say on that point.

18 MR. TURK: If I may respond very briefly to

19 Judge Linenberger. We are ready, willing and able to

20 litigate energetics as part of this hearing and we

21 anticipate that we will do so. As I indicated earlier, it

22 will be part of I though 3A and maybe 3C.

23 We are dealing with a contention that was

24 worded before all the information was made available and

25 perhaps the contention has to be read liberally in order
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1 to understand what the issues are that need to be raised.-

A/ 2 But I would like to respond very quickly to

3 your comments as to the service of the Theofanous

4 document and the non-service of the compendium upon

5 yourself, Judge Linenberger.

6 We certainly don't intend tc withhold

7 information. We have included in the appendix to the SER,

a which was issued in March 1983, an Appendix A. In that

9 Appendix A there is a discussion of core disruptive

10 accident energetics. That is Appendix A.2. That is a

11 summary of the Theofanous report which was prepared by

12 Mr. Theofanous in working with the staff and was included

13 in the SER.

(N 14 In the appendix itself there is a reference tor

t ).

'J~,

15 a long list of documents which were transmitted back and

16 forth between applicants and staff as well as other

17 matters which included the Theofanous report. I can

18 provide you with a page cite to that in just a moment.

19 JUDGE LINENBERGER: That is all right. T have

20 those references. I am well aware they are there.

21 MR. TURK: Okay. The point I was going to make

22 is that it is not normal staff practice to serve all

23 pieces of correspondence upon the Board or all documents

24 or studies upon the Board, and perhaps a judgment call

25 needs to be made as to what should be a Board

(O)
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1 notification matter and what need not be.

Os
.

2 Certainly in this case the staff apparently did

3 not deem this to be a matter of sufficient moment that

4 needed to be served directly upon the Board rather than

5 being referred to in'the SER and made available when the

6 board requested it. I apologize if the Board feels that

i 7 they should have received a copy personally. Certainly no

a deliberate decision was made to withhold documents from
9 the Board.

10 JUDGE LINENBERGER: We found our evaluation of

11 parts of Volume 2 of the SER rather constrained without

12 having in hand the NUREG 3224 document.

13 MR. TURK: As I indicated, there was no

14 intention to withhold it from the Board.

15 JUDGE LINENBERGER: Sure.

16 MR. TURK: It was available in fact in the

17 Public Document Room. Let me mention, not with regard to

la our own request for a personal copy, and we are always

19 happy to make available copies to the Board members, but

! 20 intervenors indicated that only now is the Theofanous

21 study available in the PDR. In fact, the Theofanous

' 22 report has been in the PDR since issuance back in March

23 1983.

24 In terms of whether any additional discovery

25 needs to be held on that, well the time for discovery has
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I closed. There have been two months of discovery since,

{N'

\_ 2 that document was in the PDR and I would have to respond
!

3 very briefly and oppose the suggestion by intervenors

4 that they need more discovery time on a document that

5 they have already had available to them for two months.

6 JUDGE LINENBERGER: Thank you.

7 JUDGE MILLER: Well, I am not content to let the

e record stop there. I have looked at these documents and

9 they are about three inches thick, and I think there is

10 no doubt that the staff, and I realize and do not believe

11 that they were withholding, but I do think that the staff

12 needs to be considerably more sensitive to the production

13 to the Board as well as to the parties of important and

-s 14 possibly significant documents and we think this is one.

'~' 15 I mean this gets right to a matter that is in

16 issue here. It is about this thick in the form that we

17 have it, and I am indicating three to four inches for the

la reporter, and the backup documents.

19 You cite a lot of things in the SER and

20 supplements. My goodness, the Board and the parties don't

21 have the opportunity or the time when we are on a short

22 discovery schedule to go through and to bring it up.
|

23 In other words, the people who are familiar

24 with these things and with their potential significance

25 are the ones who should make that initial judgment and

O,
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I should affirmatively bring it to the attention of the
(, s)
\/ 2 Board and the parties.

3 The intervenors do have a point there when they

4 say that they didn't have this information available to

5 look at and that troubles the Board, and the Board didn't

6 either, but that is a separate matter. We can look after

7 ourselves and we did cause it to be produced, but the

a intervenors don't have quite the same capability. We are

9 disturbed that the staff did not make that available.

10 The date of it is March 11 and I don't know

11 how much longer it takes. Since it is still in Xerox

12 form, I am not sure what stage it is in staff's

13 preparation, but we regard it as significant. It is not

(~ s 14 enough to say it is available when it is mentioned or

(
15 cited in an SER, which itself is pretty thick.

16 so there we do feel the staff should have

17 affirmatively anticipated and made it available as you

18 have, as a matter of fact, on other documents, but this

19 one we think clearly that there is some problem.,

20 Let me inquire of the intervenors, have you had

21 a chance or an opportunity to examine this NUREG CR-3224?

22 MR. TURK: Judge Miller, if I may just add one

23 thing at this time. The intevenors requested their own

24 copy of the Theofanous doucment and I don't want to

25 miscite the number, and we did delivery a personal copy
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1 to Dr. Cochran back in April of the Theofanous study.
(
\_/ 2 JUDGE MILLER: Do you have the date on that

3 approximately of April?

4 MR. TURK: No, I would have to check.

5 JUDGE MILLER: Okay.

6 I take it you have had a personal copy which

7 really wasn't compelled under our rules, but the court

a appreciates the efforts of the staff to make it readily

9 available Since April. I suppose you have had the

10 opportunity, whether or not you have been able to

11 complete you analysis of it; is that correct?

12 MS. FINAMORE: I have been informed tnat we did

13 receive a copy of it a couple of weeks ago, and that in

14 the time remaining to us in the last couple of weeks Dr.fs
( )
'#

15 Cochran has had an ability to do no more than skim the

16 NUREG 3224 and the two co.npendium documents. That is our

17 problem. He needs the time, not just to read it fully,

id which he hasn't done yet, but to analyze it and go

19 through the calculations critically.

20 JUDGE MILLER: Well, why can't he do that? We

21 have been told several times that Dr. Cochran has plans

22 and he is entitled to his own plans. I am not being

23 critical of him. But, on the other hand, why isn't this

24 something that he can do when he gets back or whatever it

25 is and utilize in cross-examination at trial or

s
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1 preparation? After all, the trial is in July.,, s

'\ /)- 2 In view of the fact that you have had access to

3 it, I stand by our comments to the staff. We think it

4 should have been highlighted. I am sure there was nothing

5 deliberate about it. The staff wasn't trying to conceal

6 it. It would have been better had it brought to the

7 attention of intervenors and the Board.

8 We will go with where we are now. There is a

9 representation that a personal copy was made available in

10 April, I don't know what date, but it was there. It is

11 there and it will be available when Dr. Cochran is able

12 to analyze it, and frankly I think that should be

13 probably sufficient.

14 If you have got some good cause to show some

%^J
15 unusual aspect of it, why you can present it, but in the

16 absence of that we think that you will have plenty of

17 opportunity because we are not requiring you now te file

18 your prefiled rebuttal testimony.

19 MS. FINAMORE: What we do request is an

20 opportunity to file discovery on matters raised in those

21 documents when we get a chance to review them completely.

( 22 JUDGE MILLER: Well, now there you are keeping

23 things open ended and we are unhappy about open endedness

| 24 from any source. We are unhappy about the staff's open
i

25 ended SSERs, too, which we have mentioned. We are trying

!

)
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.

I to cut down the open endedness because we can never bring

2 these things to a reasonable and expeditious conclusion,

3 in fairness to everybody if we hold back the opportunity

4 to do so and so.

5 You have it and you can examine it. If you can

6 show good cause, and that is more than just general

7 matters, you Can file an appropriate motion, but you

a would have to show some significant good cause frankly

9 because you will still be able to utilize the information

lo in your preparing for trial.

11 All right, anything further on this subject

12 now?

13 (No response.)

-w 14 JUDGE MILLER: We will go now to a matter which

\"' 15 has brought to your attention under the nomenclature of a

16 Board memorandum identifying topics of Board interest

17 wherein Judge Linenberger listed a number of matters

la which the Board would like to have some evidence produced

19 to otherwise handle.

20 I think before we go on to some additional or

21 supplemental material, Mr. Edgar had questions about one

22 or two of those; is that correct?

23 MR. EDGAR: It is Q-8 on page 4.

24 JUDGE MILLER: Yes.

25 MR. EDGAR: It talks of the design
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1 characteristic of the containment confinement structures

2 in the steam generator and the challenges to those

3 structures arising from transient induced overpressure

4 and overtemperature conditions.

5 I wanted to get on this one, if I could,

6 confirmation of the physical scenario that we should

7 examine here.

9 Let me tell you what I think the case is and

9 then there is an alternative construction, and I would

10 like to get them sorted. But what we think it is is if

11 you have a transient in a steam generator, and let's

12 assume you have a tube leak so you get the water and the

13 sodium mixed and you liberate hydrogen and other things,

fs 14 the design has capability and systems in place to

'- 15 accommodate that event from what I would call the

16 mechanical or structural response of the system. That is

17 how we read it.

id JUDGE LINENBERGER: That is a correct reading.

19 MR. EDGAR: All right, good.

20 JUDGE LINENBERGER: That is what we are

21 interested in. With respect to the containment, for

22 example, I am not sure I can identify who, but there have

23 been statements made in various documents that one really

24 doesn't talk about containment failure of pressures or

25 stresses, and yet one talks about a containment design

l
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1 pressure of 15 psi and it will be tested to 15 percent
i

2 above that. Then one talks about all sorts of horrible

3 things going on inside the containment and pressures

4 reaching various values.

5 It has left the Board, I should say, a little

6 puzzled about what various ASME duty codes the

7 containment is expected to meet and how the design

8 pressure compares with failure pressure, compares with

9 hydrogen pressure or any other pressures it has got to

10 see.

11 So it is those kinds of mechanical structural

12 things that are of interest in that question.

13 MR. EDGAR: Okay. We understand that one. I just

"s 14 needed confirmation on the steam generator.
;

N''-
15 The other one that I think we have a handle on

16 is the fuel failure mode question, No. 2. That comes up

17 in the context of the several discussions we have had on

18 design basis accidents and some beyond design basis

19 accidents.

20 What we were going to do was to make sure the

| 21 testimony is very explicit in when you describe a

22 scenario and when you describe an analysis you describe

23 also physically the limiting fuel failure mode, its
I

| 24 physical basis and why it is there.

25 JUDGB LINENBERGER: Correct, that is what is

I
!

TAYLOE ASSO CIA TES
| 16 2 5 I Str e e t, N . W . - S uit e 10 0 4
' W ashington, D.C. 20006

(202) 293-3950

|

|
-. . -- - _ _ . . __ - . . . , - -- - - _ - - -



_ _ - - _ _ . . - -

7254

1 wanted.
(
N/ 2 MR. EDGAR: Okay.

3 JUDGE MILLER: Any other questions, Mr. Edgar?

4 MR. EDGAR: No, sir.

5 JUDGE MILLER: Now, in addition, there are four

6 or five more items of Board interest, 11 through 14, to

7 be added.

8 JUDGE LINENBERGER: Well, I have added some you

9 don't know about.

10 JUDGE MILLER: You have added some, all right.

11 Eleven through what?

12 JUDGE LINENBERGER: Seventeen.

13 JUDGE MILLER: All right, 11 through 17. Rather

la than take the time I think, unless Judge Linenberger

\-- 15 feels that some of them require explanation now, they

16 will be set up in the order following this conference and

17 they will be handled in the same fashion as the previous

18 ones.

19 Let me ask Judge Linenberger, are there any

20 that you feel should be commented on for the record now?

21 JUDGE LINENBERGER: I don't believe so. There is

22 one on here that perhaps we can clarify right now and

23 maybe leave it off of the list. I just have been unable

24 to find the answer myself. It involves the staff.

25 The 17th question on this list is what is the
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1 status of the staff's review of and what is the staff'sf-

L3) 2 position wito respect to the "eight areas of concern"

3 listed in section 1, Table 2 of the Theofanous report?

4 Now I don't know whether the staff has

5 addressed these eight areas of concern or not. I know

6 that they were questions that the report authors directed

7 to the applicant.

8 MR. TURK: Give us your question again, please.

9 JUDGE LINENBERGER: These eight areas of concern

10 represented questions that the authors of this report

11 directed to the applicant. The applicant, so far as I

12 know, has answered all those. I would like to know

13 whether the staff has critiqued those answers and arrived

/''N 14 at a position?
('j

15 MR. TURK: I think we had better answer that in

16 writing.

17 JUDGE LINENBERGER: All right, I will leave that

la one in then.

19 MR. TURK: Thank you.

20 JUDGE LINENBERGER: Thank you.

| 21 JUDGE MILLER: Any other questions?

22 MR. EDGAR: I had a mechanical logistics

23 question. We have got the ten areas of interest and then

24 we will get the additional ones in the order.

25 What we are finding is that they wind into our

|

|
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1 evidentiary presentations. There are one or twoO
kl 2 exceptions, and I wanted to ask for advice on thes

3 logistics of how to handle that.

4 The one having to do wita safety classification

5 and some QA program elements, we are underway on that. I

6 have a suggestion and the suggestion is-this, that we

7 would file with the Board a statement addressing those

a points and with an affidavit attached so that the Board

9 can make a judgment on a real basis as to whether they

10 wish to have witnesses or further inquiry or whatever

11 seems to suit.

12 I guess I don't know how to handle it in the

13 abstract, and our thought was that we woufo come in with

-s 14 something at about the due date for summary disposition ' 3.' - _,

'- 15 so that we would have a planning basis to move forward.y

16 I guess at that point we would request the

17 Board's advice as to what they wanted. I didn't want to

18 have a disconnect and move forward if that is a bad idea.

19 JUDGE LINENBERGER: Well, are you specifically ~ -

20 referring, Mr. Edgar, to question No. 5 on page 3?
'

-

21 MR. EDGAR: It is both 5 and 6 that we would in

22 addressing that have a rather extensive writeup of that

23 subject. '

24 JUDGE LINENBERGER: Well, now let me put a

25 question to you. Had it been the intent of applicants,

b)( TAYLOE ASSO CI A TES
16 2 5 I Str e e t, N. W . - S uite 10 0 4

| W ashington, D.C. 20006
| (202) 293-3950

|
1 . . - - . - _ - - . - - . __ ..



__
_

m

7257-

,

.,

1
s or is it the intent of applicants to make a presentation

-- 2
..

on quality assurance irrespective of this list of

3 questions?

'- 4
MR.. EDGAR: No, it really hadn't. We thought it

5 to be a matter of purely Board interest. There is no

6 contention on it.

7 JUDGE LINENBERGER: Well, no, but you

8
understand full well that we would have a CP hearing if

9
there were no intervenors.

,

10 MR.' EDGAR: Oh, I understand that, Enow that you
11 ask it that way. -The. answer to your' question is yes, we

12
- are going to address this point. I guess my question is

I3 do-you want us to come in with a written submission and
.

l'
;- 'T then decide what.'need, do y'ou need' witnesses or not, or

-)
~15-

do you want us to produce witnesses?
,

16 My thought on that was'that if I were the.,

17 Board I would want to assess that in concrete terms

L 18 rather than the abstract, and I would like to be aole to

19 submit something which is essentially testimony, but then
|

20 have some lead time to know whether I need witnesses.

21 JUDGE MILLER: What are you going to do about

22
| cross-examination? If you submit it in the form of what

23 you say would be testimony or affidavits, you are

24 obviating cross-examination.

25
~

MR. EDGAR: I mean certainly someone can

O
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l request an opportunity to be heard on the point.

C-~'~' 2 JUDGE MILLER: That is three weeks down the
3 pike. We are trying now to make the decisions which will

" enable us to proceed with reasonable dispatch. Now you

5 are suggesting a possible two-phased approach, to put it

' in writing, then we look at it and then we may or may not
,

7 hear from intervenors and then we decide whether or not

a we are going to ask you to put on evidence.

9 MR. EDGAR: No. We are going to do the same

10 thing. Whether you lable it or put affidvaits on it or

11 introduce it as testimony doesn't make much difference to

12 us.
13 JUDGE MILLER: I pointed out the difference is

14(''N cross-examination and questions by the Board. That is a
V

15 very significant difference, Mr. Edgar.

16 MR. EDGAR: I am looking for the Board's advice

17 and the Board ---

16 JUDGE MILLER: My advice to you is to save time

19 I would jolly well rather have a witness so there are

20 questions he or she may be asked and then you don't have

21 a problem. If it is short, fine. If it is something that

22 opens by virtue of cross or Board questions, then you

23 will go from there just as you do in the trial of your

24 case.
25 MR. EDGAR: I have got the guidance I need.

O
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I JUDGE MILLER: Okay. I think it will save time

'- 2 and probably be more satisfactory to the parties as well

3 as to the Board.

'
Staff.

5 MR. TURK: I have a similar type of a question,

' particularly since Judge Linenberger asked the question

7 before as to the status of our review of eight matters

8 referred to in tne Theofanous report.

9 It may be that if we provide a written answer,

10 Judge Linenberger will determine and the Board will

11 determine that they don't need to see witnesses on the

12 matter.

13 What I would suggest, if the Board is

l' amendable to the suggestion, is that when summary

15 dispositions are motioned, that the staff or applicant

16 file an affidavit as to whatever matters they feel can be

17 adequately disposed of by affidavit. Let the intervenors

Id have a week's time to determine whether they need

I' cross-examination, let the Board consider any requests

20 for cross-examination in its own determination as to

21 whether witnesses should be called forward and then

22
|

advise us perhaps two weeks before testimony is due,

23 which will be approximately June 15 or so, as to whether

24 witnesses need to be presented on the issues.

25 JUDGE LINENBERGER: That is making it much tooI
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I< ' .. structured, Mr. Turk.

- 2 JUDGE MILLER: It is taking too much time, too.

3 JUDGE LINENBERGER: Right.

" JUDGE MILLER: You are going to start trial on

5 July 5.

6 MR. TURK: That is right. We have testimony due

7 July 5th, and if we had 20 days before testimony ---

8 JUDGE LINENBERGER: Now are you going to have

' somebody responsible to present a discussion on core

10 energetics?

11 MR. TURK: We are preparing to do that, yes.

12 JUDGE LINENBERGER: All right. Then just be

13 forewarned that the topics involved in the eight areas of

14

('']\.
concern are likely to come at you as Board questions from

%_
15 the bench at that time. Make no special efforts or

16 special submittals, but just anticipate that those topics

17 will be of interest to the Board.

18 MS. FINAMORE: I have a point of clarification.

19 Most of these questions to date or the topics of Board

20 interest request specific information from either the

21 staff or the applicants, but there are few of them upon

22
which intervenors would very likely have something to

23
add, for example, the protective action guidelines, et

24
cetera.

25
Does the Board envision giving the

|
, -.s
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I
73 intervenors an opportunity to file testimony on any of

b 2 these Board topics even though they may or may not be

3 within the scope of a contention and, No. 2, will the

* intervenors be allowed an opportunity to cross-examine

5 witnesses on any of these Board topics, whether they may

6 or may not be in the scope of a convention by

7 intervenors?

8 JUDGE MILLER: Yes and yes.

9 MS. FINAMORE: Thank you.
!

10 JUDGE MILLER: We would want some asking for

11 leave and that kind of thing so we could focus. We

12 wouldn't just be turning it over for cross-examination

13 without limitation, for example, but nonetheless within

14 the scope of it we would permit cross-examination within

is the scope of the Board's rulings which might go somewhat

16 beyond but not too far beyond the proffered direct

17 testimony, and the same would be true of the projected

18 direct or rebuttal testimony which might be offered.

I' It would be subject I think to requests for

20 leave and a showing, but if not too far beyond, it

i 21 wouldn't require too much showing. Now if it started

22 going beyond, then it would be much different. There is

23 an opportunity, in other words, but you would have to tie

24 it in.

25 Does that give you any problem?

'
I
,
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1 MS. FINAMORE: No.

O 2 JUDGE MILLER: Okay.

3 MR. TURK: One last clarification, if I might.

4 In view of the fact that intervenors are permitted to put

5 on testimony with respect to Board questions, I take it

6 there is also permission available to the staff or

7 applicants if they determine they wish to file testimony
t

8 or if they wish to cross-examine on any matters within

9 the Board's ---

10 JUDGE MILLER: Yes, it all cuts two ways. You

11 will note now that we have been talking about prefiled

12 written testimony which we are not just enchanted with

13 but we realize it is part of our practice. We have not

14 required prefiled written rebuttal testimony. We have no
15 objection to coming on live. We think we can handle it

l' and we feel sure that you can, but we want to be sure

17 that you don't claim surprise sometime when somebody

la starts to do it at trial.

19 All right, is there anything further on this

20 subject now? We will be setting up in the order the

21 additional seven I believe it is areas of Board interest

22 and then you may proceed to handle it as you have
,

23
discussed it here.

There is another matter or two other matters

25 that the Board wishes to discuss with you at this time.

(
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1 One is further SER supplements. We would likee-

('' 2 to know sort of what is projected there. The Board, as we

3 have indicated earlier, does not want to be caught or

'
kept open ended and the staff can just filing SSERs and

5 the Board has to judge almost without an adequate record

' to what extent they may or may not be necessary for us to

7 close the record or use it for decision-making purposes.

8 We have had problems of this kind, not because

9 anyone is at fault, with other hearings. But remember

10 this is a first of a kind. This is a fast breeder reactor

11 and so therefore we believe that in fairness both to the

12 parties as well as to the Board we should have some sort

13 of indication.

l'

(~~)'i
The staff may not be prepared at this time

\_ 13
and we don't want to take you by surprise on it, but we

l'
do want to know what your schedule is on SSERs and what

17 do they go into. Give us a fair description. You don't

18 have to get into details, but the Board and I am sure the

19
parties want to know what is coming up, what is likely to

20 come up, what is your timing and what are your projeted

21 dates because we are going to be under a lot of pressure

22 to move these hearings along, as we will do and as you

23 are doing, and we are going to reach a point where there

24 is going to be a motion to close the record and to have

25 proposed findings and so forth.
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Ig Now we don't want to have a lot of things that

\-- 2 are dangling that we either don't think of to bring up in

3 the stress of a trial or which requires everybody to gear

" up and make a special appearance and so forth.

5 So let's find out from the staff what is going

6 to be the picture, and if you want more time in which to

7 give us an answer in writing, that would be permissible,

e or if you could tell us now and then follow it up,

' whatever is reasonable for you.

10 MR. TURK: The staff's SER Supplement No. I was

II issued on May 2, 1983. SER Supplement No. 2 will be

12 issued next week perhaps as early as Monday, but

13 certainly early in the week.

/~ 14

(s)/
JUDGE MILLER: Have you told us what that will

15 cover previously?

16 MR. TURK: Yes, the three items referred to

17 previously.

la JUDGE MILLER: Okay.

19 MR. TURK: It is not anticipated that there

20 will be any further SER supplements. The staff will

21 consider as of next week that all items have been closed

22 and no further SER supplements will be issued.

23 JUDGE MILLER: Well, you make our problem much

24 easier then.

25
If there should be any changes, I am sure you

(\
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1gN would reasonably alert both the Board and the parties.

U 2 MR. TURK: In the event the staff was apprised

3
or additional and different information on that which had

"
been made available to us by applicant previously, we

5 might then determine our need to come out with something

' further, but at this point nothing more is anticipated

7 after next week.

8 JUDGE MILLER: Okay. One final matter that I

9 have, and I will check with Judge Linenberger, and that

10 is the ACRS type of information. The last one I have in

11 hand is the April 19, 1983 letter to Chairman Palladino,

12 the ACRS Report on the Clinch River Breeder Reactor Plant

13 signed by Mr. Jessie C. Ebersole, Acting Chairman. Then

la there are additional comments and there are references

15 and Appendix J, which is an errata to the March SER.

16
Now we would like to have some indication I

17 think as to what effect and impact there may be from the

la ACRS consideration, including but not limited to the

19 latest of the reports and some statement for the record

20 by any of you who have information.

21 MR. TURK: In the staff's SER supplement to be

22 issued next week -- excuse me, may I have a moment?

23 JUDGE MILLER: Yes.

24 (Brief pause.)

25 MR. TURK: I misspoke. In SER Supplement No. 1
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1 issued on May 2, the ACRS letter is attached and at page

2 19-1 of SER Supplement No. 1 we indicate the staff's

3 position that all matters have been adequately treated.

#
JUDGE LINENBERGER: That has been noted by the

5 Board and raises some questions. For example, at page 3

6 of the ACRS letter, the first full paragraph there

7 indicates ACRS belief that timely completion of a

8 probabilistic risk assessment by applicants to permit

9 review and evaluation by the staff and the ACRS should be

10 a condition of the construction permit.

11 Now I believe in your Section 19 of Supplement

12 1 you have indicated that this is something that is not

13 going to happen until sometime in 1985. Does that mean

14(''s that the ACRS recommendation with respect to a condition
'd

15 for a construction permit is something the staff does not

16 go along with or am I misreading something?

17 MR. TURK: Judge Linenberger, if I may, I would

18 like to pass the microphone to Richard Stark who is the

19 Project Manager. He may better be able to answer your

20 question.

21 JUDGE MILLER: All right. If it is a factual

22 matter he may,

23 MR. STARK: At the ACRS meeting the ACRS is

24
concerned that any benefit from a PRA come quite early so

25
that it can be appropriately factored into the design.
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I
They recognized the schedule of the PRA and encouraged-

\/ 2 the applicant and the staff to work on it and stay on it

3 such that it would not come very late in the operating

'
license stage but very early so that appropriate changes

5
could still be factored in and one couldn't argue that

6 time didn't exist.

7 I think that was the only intent. They didn't

a
make it a condition that it had to be done before the

' issuance of the CP, but they wanted the staff to

10 encourage it and work very early and get this data out as

11 early as one could get it.

12 JUDGE LINENBERGER: So the statement on page 3

13 of the letter that completion by the applicants should be

14 a condition of the construction permit, you are saying

15 that is not really what it means?

16
MR. STARK: What we are saying in the

17
construction permit is that the applicant should complete

is it on the schedule that they have adhered to in 1984 and

19
we will review it. It is an area that we will require

r

20 review on well in advance of the issuance of the OL, for

21 example.

22 JUDGE LINENBERGER: But not in advance of the

23 issuance of the CP?
24 MR. STARK: That is correct.

25 JUDGE MILLER: Dr. Cochran, you want equal
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Im time? We are hearing from non-lawyers and you are

2 entitled to a fair shot at it.

3 DR. COCHRAN: I really don't need equal time on

4 that particular issue. I would have liked to have swaped

5
it for a time on another issue.

6 (Laughter.)

7 DR. COCHRAN: But that is an issue we address

8 in our contentions, the timing of the PRA vis-a-vis the

' CP and the determination with respect to the credibility

10 of core disruptive accidents.

11 JUDGE MILLER: Okay. Thanic you.

12 JUDGB LINENBERGER: Further, Mr. Turk, at page

13 5 of the ACRS letter, the third reference of ACRS is to a

14 Phase I PRA report dated January 1983. I didn't find that
v 15 listed anywhere in the SER Appendix E chronology. I don't

16 know whether that was an oversight or not. But

17 irrespective of whether that was an oversight, I would

18 like to ask either of applicants or staff if they

19 consider this might be a report of some interest to the

zu Board? Having been issued back in January and this now

21 being May, maybe it was transmitted to the Board. I just

22 don't recall.

23 JUDGE MILLER: Does anyone have any

24 information?

25 MR. EDGAR: I am getting it,

m
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1 JUDGE MILLER: Okay.

2 (Brief pause.)

3 HR. EDGAR: I am advised that it has not been

4 transmitted to the Board and that whenever we make formal

5 submissions on the document they are routinely served I

6 hope. I am certain of that I think, and I hope they are

7 getting there.

a What it is is its the PRA was I suppose

9 arbitrarily divided into two phases. It is a very

10 preliminary step and the work is now ongoing toward

11 completion of a final report.

12 The conclusions or, I don't know, findings

13 perhaps, they are not really conclusions, I am advised

l' are really not technically reviewed and completed.

I' JUDGE LINENBERGER: Should I translate that to

16 say that the contents of the report are such that it is

17 the applicants' assessment that it is not of interest to

la the Board?

I'
| MR. EDGAR: It is presumptious of me to make a
l

20
judgement for the Board, but I guess that is the feeling,

i
21 that it isn't really valid yet.

22
JUDGE LINENBERGER: Okay.

23 MR. TURK: Also, Judge Linenberger, if I might

24 point out, to the best of my knowledge, this is an

25 applicant document rather than a staff document.

I
1

I
| ("%
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I JUDGE LINENBERGER: Oh, I understand that.

2 MR. TURK: And it has not been relied upon by

3 staff and therefore it may not show up in the appendices

# to the SER or SER supplement.

5 JUDGE LINENBERGER: Well, your Appendix E lists

6 many applicant originated documents.

7 MR. TURK: That is right, those which were sent

8 to us as part of the review that we conduct. I don ' t

' believe that was one of them.

10 Also, I should state that it is our

11 understanding that while the document may be entitled

12 Phase 1, it is indeed the only phase that is intended to

13 be completed. As far as we know, there is no intention

O l'/ for any update of that document to be made.

15 MR. EDGAR: Whatever that meant, that is not

I'
true. There is going to be a completed PRA. That is going

17 to happen as scheduled and that is stated in the SER.

18 So I want to make sure the record is clear,

l' there will be a completed PRA. There will be a report.

20 MR. TURK: I didn't mean to suggest anything

21 other than that.

22( JUDGE LINENBERGER: Dack to the ACRS letter
i

23 with you, Mr. Turk. On page 19-1 the staff adverts to an
i

24
ACRS comment about seismic qualification of small piping

25 and indicates that it has requested that a study on this
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' be performed which study it will review prior to the

\ 2 issuance of a construction permit.

3 Now seismic qualification of components and

4 equipment is not always a small matter. Sometimes it is a

5 substantive matter, and when you indicated earlier that

6 there will be no further SER supplements than the onc

7 next week, which I doubt will get into seismic

8 qualification of pipine, I must conclude from that then

9 that the results of this qualification will not be

10 available for consideration in the hearing to come. Is

11 that a proper conclusion to draw?

12 MR. TURK: I am advised that we anticipate

13 receiving the applicant's analysis in mid-May,

l'

('N approximately May 17, and that our review of the
,

13 applicants' document will be completed approximately one

16 month after that in June. So that the results should be

17 available to the Board at that time, perhaps not in an

18 SER supplement since none is anticipated, but as a staff
!

19 document.
20

! JUDGE MILLER: Okay. Then the Board will be

21 furnished a copy and it will be copied to all parties.;

1

22 MR. TURK: If the Board requests it, yes.

23 JUDGE MILLER: Well, consider it requested.

24 JUDGE LINENBERGER: It is a request.
,

[
' 25 On page 19-2, paragraph 9, or item 9, I am not

r\
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1 quite sure how I should have read that, but there is

2 mention there of the fact that the staff has modified the
3

current principle design criteria as a result of meetings

# with ACRS.
5

My question to you is does Section 3.1 of the

6 SER reflect those modifications or is this something

7 subsequest?

8 MR. TURK: I am informed that the SER is
'

inclusive.

10 JUDGE LINENBERGER: All right, fine. I wasn't

11 quite sure how to read that.

12 Incidentally, this morning, Mr. Turk, you

13 commented about some eight in number of open items that

I"

(' had been identified and all but one or two of them are<

L
15 now Closed.
16 MR. TURK: There were six, Judge Linenberger.

17 JUDGE LINENBERGER: Or six, okay, and I saw

18
some information coming into you yesterday or the day

i
'

19 before that indicates one of those two is being responded

! 20 to by applicants.

21 However, the problem I have is that in

22 addition to the six items that you clearly flagged as

23 "open" items in the SER,'the SER is liberally sprinkled

24 with many, many items that are unsolved, you need more

25 information on, it is not clear what the answer is going

,

I
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Ip to be, and a tremendous amount of items are in a category

2 of we are going to have to wait until later to see how

3 that comes out.

* Now I really don't understand what is the

5 significance of closing this list of six open items as

6 though that closes the book on something when the SER is

7 full of so many things that are yet to be resolved either

a
now or at the OL phase. Perhaps I am missing something

9
here on the definition of an open item.

10 Now one of the questions in our first list of

11 ten questions dealt with that general topic of our

12 concern about so many open items on a project where so

13 much hardware exists or has already been designed, and I

14 don't want to get into a discussion of that today. This
15 is not an evidentiary hearing as such.

16
But I would like to understand the

17 significance of closing all six open items when there

la still are many things left to be resolved. Can you help

19 me a little bit there?

20
MR. TURK: May I inquire, is there anything

21 particular that comes to mind at the moment as to an area

22
that has been left open without being styled open? I can

23
respond generally, but I might help ---

24
JUDGE LINENBERGER: Well, for goodness sakes,

25
the last thing we were talking about, seismic
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1 qualiafication of piping, that wasn't an open item, and

d 2 yet here it has been committed that something has to be

3 done and will be done.

* Pages 19-1 and 19-2 list some of them. Gee, I

5 guess I didn't bring my SER with me, but there are many

6 -- oh, I will tell you another one that so far as I know

7 is an open item, is or is not the reactor capable of

a natural circulation cooling. This is an item that the

9 staff has said they want to get a resolution of and it is

10 not listed as an open item.

11 I can pull another one out of the air.

12 Somewhere in the SER and certainly in the Theofanous

13 report or NUREG CR-3224, there are concerns about the

I'N possibility of plenum gas compaction of fuel. I don't
J 15 think I have seen anywhere in the SER or in anything I

16 have read so far that that one has been resolved to the

17 staff's satisfaction. I would think, for example, that

la might be an open item.

19 So I am just having trouble understanding what

20 are open items and the significance of closing them when

21 there are still a bunch of things in the air that are

22
i unresolved.

23
JUDGE MILLER: Mr. Edgar thinks he can shed

24
some light on this.

25
MR. EDGAR: I think I can help on that. Let me

A
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|

1 take the last two examples, because these are important

2 ones I think.

3 Let's take the plenum gas compaction one. The

4 scenario of plenum gas compaction has been analyzed

5 extensively and you see it written up there in Appendix A

6 of the SER.
,

7 What the experts concluded was that they

8 weren't sure that with a high enough degree of

9 conservatism that they had one specific sequences which

10 resulted in the plenum fission gas compaction and whether

11 that would stay within the bounds of the energetics

12 criteria.

13 What they did determine, however, was that

l' there was a simple design fix, and this is really quite

15 interesting. There was a spacer tube in the top of the

16 fuel assembly ---

I JUDGE LINENBERGER: Mr. Edgar,' excuse me. Those

la were listed as examples. I don't think this is the place

l' for testimony, and I am just trying to understand what

20 kind of guideline the staff uses for flagging something

21
as an open item and leaving other things unresolved when

22
they say they have closed all open items.

23
MR. EDGAR: Can I reduce the answer to one

24
sentence on fission gas compaction, and it is it employs

25 the principles of the two-step licensing process
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1 reflected in the NRC regulations because the staff has

2 identified and the applicants committed to either.

3 additional calculations to prove the case or a design

'
fix. That will result in reasonable assurance plus

3 resolution prior to the OL.

6 MR. TURK: Judge Linenberger, let me make a

7 brief statement, if I might, and then see if I need to

e pass the microphone again.

9 Normally items are styled open where

10 insufficient information has been presented for the

11 staff to review. An item might be closed notwithstanding

12 the fact that certain information has not yet been

13 supplied to us where the staff determines that we think

l' we know what the applicants are going to say and we are,

15 waiting to see their letter to confirm it, or where a

16 matter may not be closed now at the CP stage, but need

17
not be since it is an OL matter.

la One of the items you mentioned, for instance,

l' had to do with piping, and that is a matter since it
,

20
relates to design that need not be resolved necessarily

at the CP stage. It is something that has to be resolved

at the OL stage.

23 With that, let me pass the microphone to

24 Richard Stark, if you will permit, and perhaps he can

25 provide more details as to any particular subject matter.

\

TAYLOE A SSO CI A T ES
162 5 I S tre e t, N . W . - S uit e 100 4

W ashington, D.C. 20006
(202) 293-3950

_- _



7277

I
- JUDGE LINENBERGER: I really didn't want

2 testimony here. I didn't want the particulars of any one

3 of the items I listed. I just wanted to understand the

' philosophy that says I have wiped out all the open item

5 list so everytning is fine, and at the same time one

6 reads other places that there are a whole bunch of things

7 still unresolved, and I just have not understood that

e approach.

' MR. STARK: Let me take a crack at it. I think

10 when we feel that the safety issue is sufficiently

11 bounded so that even though our perspective of it and the

12 applicants' are different, we still feel that even the

13 plant were operated in the mode that we look at it, which

l',Q is more conservative, that it would still be okay to go
' 15

ahead and build it.

I' Applicant might come back at a later date with

17
more data, with a different design and perhaps win their

18 point that would allow them to operate the fuel longer or

I' whatever the case might happen to be, but we feel that.

20 the operation of the plant could still take place and it

21 is sufficiently bounded with the information and we allow

22 that design options might exist or confirmatory data

23 might come in to make more clear what the exact

24 definition is, but we feel that the big picture is

25 bounded.

Ch
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1
% JUDGE LINENBERGER: One further question to the

2 staff at least. The basis for a decision that something

3 is important at CP versus important at OL is one that the

* Board does not really completely understand.

5 Now again this is wrapped up in one of the

' questions asked in our published list of questions, and I

7 just want to make sure that the staff and the applicant

d
both understana the nature of the Board's concern. I am

9 not asking for responses now.

10 A tremendous number of things are being left

11 for later and each one of them by itself somebody is

12 saying well, if life isn't what we expect it to be, we

13 will do it a little different or we will fix it or we

I'(~) will constrain the operation or something, but the sum
(_/

15 total of all of these things where the perversity of

16 nature says a good many of them are not going to come out

17 the way you want perhaps causes the Board to be concerned

18 a bout the readiness to build this plant.

19 Now I am not soliciting comments now. Keep

20 this in mind and weave considerations about these kinds

21 of things into your testimony.
|

| Believe me, the ACRS must have been reading
22

23 our minds when it said at the end of that letter that

24 they are going to pay more than usual attention to this

25
| project and so is this Board in its forthcoming hearing.

/~%
( i
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1 So please take this seriously or you may not

O 2 take it anywhere.

3 Thank you.

" JUDGE MILLER: I think that concludes the

5 matters that the Board desired to raise at this time, but

6 let's give the parties an opportunity.

7 Are there any matters that you wish to have

e made part of the record? You will be moving now into the

' balance of the limited discovery, the motions and the

10 filing of your prefiled written testimony in the

11 evidentiary hearing. So we may not be meeting with you

12 again until we are in a courtroom.

13 So therefore if there is anything anyone

l' would like to bring up now, please feel free to do so.

15 We will go in the usual order.

I' Mr. Edgar?

17 MR. EDGAR: Nothing.

18 JUDGE MILLER: Intervenors?

I'
MS. FINAMORE: Nothing.

20 JUDGE MILLER: Staff?

21 MR. TURK: Nothing at this time.

22 JUDGE MILLER: We will adjourn at this time.

23 Thank you for coming.

24 (Whereupon, the conference with counsel

25 adjourned at 2:10 p.m.)

'
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